Penallta House,
Tredomen Park,
¥strad Mynach,
Hengoed CF82 7PG

Dear Sir/Madam,

Public Document Pack

Ty Penalita, ‘
Parc Tredomen,
¥strad Mymach, c A E R PH’ '. LY

CEIINTY BOORONGH COIINCTL
EVNGDR BWREDBEISTREF SIRDL

CAERFIFILY
>

Hengoed CFB2 7PG

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Amy Dredge
(Tel: 01443 863100 Email: dredga@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Date: 18th September 2019

A meeting of the Education Scrutiny Committee will be held in the Sirhowy Room, Penallta House,
Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach on Tuesday, 24th September, 2019 at 5.30 pm to consider the matters
contained in the following agenda. Councillors and the public wishing to speak on any item can do so by
making a request to the Chair. You are also welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, both these requests
require a minimum notice period of 3 working days, and a simultaneous translation will be provided if

requested.

All Committee meetings are open to the Press and Public, observers and participants are asked to
conduct themselves with respect and consideration for others. Please note that failure to do so will result
in you being asked to leave the meetings and you may be escorted from the premises.

Yours faithfully,

Christina Harrhy
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AGENDA

Pages

1 To receive apologies for absence.

Declarations of Interest.

Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for
both Councillors and Officers.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

®)
o < Q$Q

ay bein
ndence oo 0 ’ang“age or fo
mat

| Wz

3 1L
o ) = “"L

/

o
Gallweh oheby mewn unrhyw iaith NeY #o




To approve and sign the following minutes: -

3 Education Scrutiny Committee held on the 2nd July 2019.

1-6
4 Consideration of any matter referred to this Committee in accordance with the call-in procedure.
5 Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.
7-34
6 To receive and consider the following Cabinet Reports*: -

1. Federation of Schools - Consultation Response Report.

2. 21st Century Schools and Education Band B Programme.
*If a member of the Scrutiny Committee wishes for any of the above Cabinet reports to be brought
forward for review at the meeting please contact Amy Dredge, 01443 863100, by 10.00 a.m. on
Monday, 23rd September 2019.

To receive and consider the following Scrutiny reports: -

7 Free School Meals (FSM) Strategy.

35-62
8 End of Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 Teacher Assessment Outcomes.
63 - 104
9 Self-evaluation process and its impact on the Education Directorate's Service Improvement Plan.
105-114
10 Safeguarding.
115-120

Circulation:

Councillors C. Andrews (Vice Chair), P.J. Bevan, A. Collis, S.Cook, W. David, A. Farina-Childs,
D.T. Hardacre, D. Havard, M.P. James, B. Miles, Mrs G.D. Oliver, Mrs T. Parry (Chair), J.E. Roberts,
R. Saralis, J. Simmonds and R. Whiting

Co-opted Members:

Cardiff ROC Archdiocesan Commission for Education Representative (with voting rights on
educational matters) Mr M. Western

Parent Governor Representatives (with voting rights on educational matters) Mr M Barry and Mr R
Morgan

Outside Body Representatives (without voting rights)
Mrs J. Havard (NEU) and Mrs P. Ireland (NEU)

Caerphilly Governors Association (without voting rights)
Mr D Davies



And Appropriate Officers

HOW WE WILL USE YOUR INFORMATION

Those individuals that attend committee meetings to speak/give evidence will be named in the minutes of that meeting,
sometimes this will include their place of employment or business and opinions expressed. Minutes of Meetings including details
of speakers will be publicly available to all via the Council website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk. except for discussions involving
confidential or exempt items.

You have a number of rights in relation to your information, including the rights of access to information we hold about you and
the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your information is being processed.

For further information on how we process your information and your rights please view the Full Committee Meetings Privacy
Notice on our website http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy or contact Legal Services by emalil
griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 863028.



http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
mailto:griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

W
CAERPHILLY

L

CAERFFILY
>

EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, YSTRAD MYNACH
ON TUESDAY, 2ND JULY 2019 AT 5.30PM.

PRESENT:
Councillor T. Parry - Chair
Councillor C. Andrews — Vice Chair
Councillors:

P.J. Bevan, A. Collis, S. Cook, W. David, A. Farina-Childs, D.T. Hardacre, D. Havard, B.
Miles, J.E. Roberts, R. Saralis, J. Simmonds and R. Whiting.

P. Marsden (Cabinet Member for Education and Achievement).

Together with:

K. Cole (Chief Education Officer), S. Richards (Head of Education, Planning and Strategy), P.
Warren (Strategic Lead for School Improvement), J. Southcombe (Finance Manager), P.
Warren (Strategic Lead for School Improvement), A. West (21st Century Schools, Admissions
and Exclusions Manager), M. Jacques (Scrutiny Officer) and C. Evans (Committee Services
Officer)

Also Present:

Co-opted Members: M. Barry (Parent Governor), Mr D. Davies (Caerphilly Governors
Association), Mr R. Morgan (Parent Governor), Mrs P.J. Ireland and Mr M. Western (Cardiff
ROC Archdiocesan Commission for Education Representative).

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M. James and Mrs G. Oliver and R.
Edmunds (Corporate Director — Education and Corporate Services).

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course of
the meeting.

3. MINUTES - 2ND APRIL 2019

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Education Scrutiny Committee meeting held on
Tuesday the 21st May 2019 (minute nos. 1- 8) be approved as a correct record and
signed by the Chair.

Page 1



In discussing Matters Arising, a Member sought clarification from Officers around figures and
Performance in relation to a report discussed at a previous meeting, expressing concerns for
public perception and reputational damage. Whilst the Member was assured that the figures
would not have an impact on the reputation of the Authority, it was also agreed that
discussions take place outside of the meeting and a follow up email would be provided to the
Committee and Member on any queries raised.

CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALL-IN PROCEDURE

There had been no matters referred to the Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the call-in
procedure.

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Scrutiny Officer presented the report which outlined the draft Education Scrutiny
Committee Forward Work Programme from May 2019 to May 2020.

The Committee were asked to note that since the publishing of the report, it has been agreed
by the Chair and Vice Chair that the report on 21% Century Schools be moved as an
information item and provided in November. The Committee discussed this proposal and
agreed for the report to be moved and provided as an information item.

Following consideration, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation in the report
and the changes proposed by the Officer be approved.

RESOLVED that subject to the aforementioned changes, the Forward Work
Programme appended to the report be approved.

CABINET REPORTS

None of the Cabinet reports listed on the agenda had been called forward for discussion at
the meeting.

REPORTS OF OFFICERS D

Consideration was given to the following reports.

FEDERATION OF SCHOOLS — CONSULTATION RESPONSE REPORT

The report provided Members with details on the outcome of the formal consultation process
for the federation of Gilfach Fargoed Primary School and Park Primary School; Fleur de Lys
Primary School and Pengam Primary School; Bedwas Junior School and Rhydri Primary
School, Cwmfelinfach Primary School and Ynysddu Primary School; and sought Members
views on the responses prior to a decision being made by Cabinet on whether to move to
formal federation for four groups of schools from September 2019.

The Committee were informed that the Governing Bodies of the schools have already been
working on a collaborative basis for a number of years and requested that the Authority
support them in the process to move to formal federation.

Cabinet, at its meeting on 11th July 2018, agreed to the request to proceed to formal
consultation in partnership with the Governing Body of each school and the formal

Page 2



consultation period for each school ran between 22nd October 2018 and 10th December
2018. On 6th November 2018, Scrutiny members were consulted on the proposal to formally
federate the 4 groups of schools and were unanimously in support.

The Committee were asked to note a summary of the responses, which were detailed in the
main body of the report, which have been discussed in detail with each Governing Body who
have all unanimously confirmed their agreement to proceed with the proposal to federate.

The Scrutiny Committee were asked to note that, should themselves and Cabinet support and
approve the proposal on 10th July 2019, the new instrument of Governance for each
federated Governing Body will be drafted and the separate Governing Bodies will be dissolved
and the new Governing Bodies will be established in readiness for the start of the new school
year.

The Scrutiny Committee thanked the Officers and Cabinet Member for the report and
discussion ensued.

Members considered the feedback in response to the consultation exercise and it was noted
that there were only a small number of responses received. Officers explained that the
Governing Bodies were very keen to formalise the current arrangements in which they had
been working in collaboration successfully for a number of years, it is assumed that this has
been one of the reasons for the lower response rate from parents etc. In addition, the
Committee were asked to note that the Estyn responses are written in their normal format in
relation to a consultation of this nature.

Discussions took place around Gilfach Fargoed and Park Primary Schools, and Members
sought further assurances from Officers around the collaboration, with particular concerns for
Estyn’s response, as detailed at page 44 within the report. Officers explained that a full
consultation process was undertaken between October and December 2018, however Estyn’s
response to this federation differed slightly in comparison to the other three groups of schools.
Members were assured that the collaboration is working well; however, this is the newest
collaboration, which has not been embedded as long. Rapid improvements however have
been made and the schools are going from strength to strength.

Members were keen to support the recommendation and formalisation of the federation of
schools, with particular emphasis on the positive impact of collaborative working at Bedwas
and Rhydri and Park Primary School and Gilfach Fargoed Primary School, which has
ultimately raised standards at schools which were previously struggling and not performing
well.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations be approved. By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officers:

i) Consider and comment on the consultation responses in relation to the
Federation proposals;
i) Support a recommendation to Cabinet to proceed to formally federate the

groups of schools identified in 1.1 above.

FORMULA FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS FOR YSGOL GYFUN CWM RHYMNI (SPLIT
SITE)

The report outlined the formula funding arrangements for Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni, linked

directly to the current split site arrangements of the School (7 mile distance between the 2
sites).

Page 3



It was noted that since September 2017 all age groups from year 7 through to year 11 have
been taught on both sites. Academic year 2017-18 was the first academic year that this
arrangement had been in place. There are 2 distinct catchment areas, with associated feeder
schools for the Gelli Haf (Blackwood) and Y Gwyndy (Caerphilly) sites.

The report reviews the current funding position for Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni and considers
this in relation to the position with regards to schools currently collaborating or those
proposing a more formal federation with a shared Headteacher in the Borough.

Members noted that Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni is the only Welsh medium secondary school
within the Borough. In May 2018 the School Strategy Board agreed that there should be a
consultation with regards to the current split site funding arrangement for the school.

The report follows a report to the School Budget Forum (held on 27th September 2018) and
subsequent circulation to all Headteachers (as appended to the report). The report was
circulated on 30th November 2018 with a request for any feedback by 11th January 2019.

The report sought the views of Members with regards to the split site funding arrangements
for Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni, in context of the size of the two sites.

The Committee thanked the Officers for the report and discussion ensued.

Members expressed their confusion with the format of the report, outlining that the
recommendations were unclear. It was noted that the corresponding information is outlined at
10.1 of the report, within the Financial Implications, however Members requested that further
report recommendations be more clear.

A Member sought further information on the 2 schools and whether it would be formalised that
the sites would be identified as 2 separate schools, with the possibility of a 6™ form option
being included in the future. Officers explained that the there will be further dialogue further
down the line, at present the report considers the current funding position and pressures on
the sites due to capacity and distance between sites. In addition, it was noted that due to
economies of scale, it is more cost effective to share where possible.

Discussions took place around capacity across the sites and it was noted that there is an 855
capacity in Gwindy and 900 in Cwm Rhymni, which is increasingly experiencing pressure to
meet requirements from feeder primary schools. Further information on actual student
numbers on role to be provided to Members via email.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations be approved. By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officers Report:

i) The split funding arrangements for Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni be updated
having considered the issued presented within the body of the report;

i) The Scrutiny Committee support the update to the split site funding
arrangements, equating to circa £114k, funded from within the individual school
budget (ISB) in 2020/21, which would however have a small impact across all
schools due to “pressure” to fund, or funded as a growth item, subject to the
Authority’s budget proposals and priorities in 2020/21;

iii) The Scrutiny Committee support retrospective funding for the current and
previous financial years (circa £100k), subject to confirmation in the further
report to Cabinet that the deficit is as a direct result of financial pressures
arising from the split site arrangement and not for other reasons, and that the

Page 4



Local Management of Schools (LMS) contingency balances are used to fund
the one-off cost.

iv) A further report be presented to Cabinet for a decision on the funding
methodology and sources of funding.

21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS AND EDUCATION BAND B PROGRAMME

The report provided Members with an update on the 21st Century Schools and Education
Band B programme, which runs between 2019 and 2026 and was agreed by Cabinet on 25th
April 2018.

The report outlined that Council agreed on 21st February 2019 to allocate £5.475 million to
the 21st Century Schools and Education programme match funding. The priority schemes
identified for Phase 1 of the programme are an expansion of provision at Trinity Fields School
and relocation and expansion of Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon on the former Cwmcarn High
site.

The intervention rates for the programme have changed, as outlined in the body of the report.
This has resulted in a reduction in the Council’'s contribution to the overall programme from
£39.15 to £26.8 million.

Initial specification of the expansion proposed for Trinity Fields has led to a recommendation
to increase the allocation for this project from £5 million to £10 million. This money would be
transferred from the refurbishment programme and is in line with WG’s expectation for
projects to the innovative and to be seen as a “once in a lifetime opportunity”. In order to
achieve this and “future proof’ the school the increase in investment to £10 million is
essential.

Both projects outlined in 2.3 of the report are in early developmental stage and officers will
ensure that Members are updated on a regular basis in relation to all aspects of the proposal
.g. financial, business case, consultation process etc.

The Councils current projected match funding contribution to deliver both schemes is currently
estimated at £5.1 million. If the increase for Trinity Fields is agreed this would reduce the
Council’s overall contribution from £26.8 million to £26.3 million.

A Board has been established to undertake a review of Sixth Form/ Single Sex/ Surplus
places provision.

The Scrutiny Committee thanked the Officers for the report and discussion ensued.

It was noted that there is no reference within the Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work
Programme to provide an update of the Sixth Form/Single Sex/Surplus places Review Board.
Officers agreed that this will be included within the forward work programme, with approval
from the Chair, Vice Chair and Committee in due course.

Discussions took place around the Business Plan and process and it was noted that there will
need to be extensive design work undertaken prior to a business case being produced, which
is undertaken by Building Consultancy and other departments within the Council, and external
specialists where required. The Business Case will then be subject to consideration and
approval by Welsh Government. It is anticipated that an update report can be provided
through the Committee process towards the end of the year.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation
be approved. By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed.

Page 5



10.

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officers report the report be noted
and Scrutiny Support the recommendation to increase the contribution for Trinity Fields
School from £5 million to £10 million before its consideration by Cabinet.

SPECIALIST RESOURCE BASE (SRB) FUNIDNG REVIEW

The report provided Members with an update on the 21st Century Schools and Education
Band B programme, which runs between 2019 and 2026 and included the outcome of the
consultations undertaken with Head Teachers on the proposals along with identified
implications and timeline for implementation. The report will thereafter go to Cabinet for a
decision.

It was noted that the majority of pupils have their needs met in mainstream education;
however, there are a range of provisions for children with differing complex needs across the
Local Authority (LA), as outlined in Appendix 1 of the report.

Existing staffing levels in Special Resource Bases (SRBs) are such that the majority of
classes have required a level of additional resourcing in order to meet the increasing complex
needs of the children places in the LA. The needs of the children in SRBs have become more
complex over time and therefore a robust analysis of those needs has been undertaken in
order to identify a model that will ensure equity across the provisions or for provisions of
similar designations.

Recommendations for a model of staffing and resourcing were contained in the report along
with any associated implications.

The Scrutiny Committee thanked the Officers for the report and discussion ensued.

Member discussed the report and sought clarifications around the table at 5.15 of the report
with reference to Additional Staffing. Officers explained that the review has been undertaken
in order to ascertain the differences in support levels across Schools, to ensure they are fair
and fit for purpose, in particular with the hours in Teaching Assistant support provision. The
review identified areas in which additional support provision was in place, where it was not
required and as a result, funding has been altered to reflect this.

The review was discussed at length and Members were keen to support the review, ensuring
support provision is in the right places for pupils across the borough.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation
be approved. By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officers report the Scrutiny
Committee support the proposed staffing model, resourcing and timeline for
implementation for the Council’'s SRBs.

The meeting closed at 18:59pm
Approved as a correct record and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and

recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 24th September 2019 they were signed by the
Chair.

CHAIR

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 5

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 24™ SEPTEMBER, 2019

SUBJECT: EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To report the Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

2. SUMMARY

2.1 Forward Work Programmes are essential to ensure that Scrutiny Committee agendas reflect
the strategic issues facing the Council and other priorities raised by Members, the public or
stakeholders.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 That Members consider any changes and agree the final forward work programme prior to
publication.

4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 To improve the operation of scrutiny.

5. THE REPORT

5.1 The Education Scrutiny Committee forward work programme includes all reports that were
identified at the scrutiny committee work meeting on 2" July 2019. The work programme
outlines the reports planned for the period September 2019 to May 2020.

5.2 The forward work programme is made up of reports identified by officers and members.
Members are asked to consider the work programme alongside the cabinet work programme
and suggest any changes before it is published on the council website. Scrutiny committee
will review this work programme at every meeting going forward alongside any changes to the
cabinet work programme or report requests.

5.3 The Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1. The
Cabinet Work Programme is attached at Appendix 2. A copy of the prioritisation flowchart is
attached at appendix 3 to assist the scrutiny committee to determine what items should be
added to the forward work programme.

Page 7



54

6.1

7.1

7.2

8.1

Conclusion

The work programme is for consideration and amendment by the scrutiny committee prior to
publication on the council website.

ASSUMPTIONS

No assumptions are necessary.

LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES

The operation of scrutiny is required by the Local Government Act 2000. The Local
Government Wales Measure 2011 and subsequent Statutory Guidance include requirements
to publicise the work of scrutiny committees. The operation of scrutiny committee forward
work programmes was agreed following decisions by Council in October 2013 and October
2015.

Corporate Plan 2018-2023.

Scrutiny Committee forward work programmes contributes towards and impacts upon the
Corporate Well-being Objectives by ensuring that the Executive is held to account for its
Corporate Objectives, which are:

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all
Objective 2 - Enabling employment

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes throughout the
county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s well-being

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that increases
opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on the environment

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with
the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

The Forward Work Programmes contribute to the following Well-being Goals within the Well-
being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2016 by ensuring there is an effective scrutiny
function and that council policies are scrutinised against the following goals:

A prosperous Wales

A resilient Wales

A healthier Wales

A more equal Wales

A Wales of cohesive communities

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language
A globally responsible Wales

Page 8



9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising as a result of this report.
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report.
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report.
12. CONSULTATIONS
12.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been included in this report.
13. STATUTORY POWER
13.1 The Local Government Act 2000.
Author: Mark Jacques, Scrutiny Officer
Consultees: Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer
Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/ Monitoring Officer
Lisa Lane, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer, Legal
Services
Councillor Teresa Parry Chair Education Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair Education Scrutiny Committee
Appendices:

Appendix 1 Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme
Appendix 2  Cabinet Forward Work Programme
Appendix 3  Forward Work Programme Prioritisation Flowchart

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



TT obed

Appendix 1

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme - May 2019 - May 2020

Meeting Date: 24" September 2019

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Foundation Phase to KS3
Performance

Identify attainment and
achievement of pupils at end of
Foundation Phase, end of Key
Stage 2 and end of Key Stage 3

Identify attainment and achievement
of FSM pupils at end of Foundation
Phase, end of Key Stage 2 and end
of Key Stage 3

Identify attainment and achievement
of boys at end of Foundation Phase,
end of Key Stage 2 and end of Key
Stage 3

Keri Cole, Chief Education
Officer

+EAS

LA FSM Strategy
presentation

To outline the education strategy
that aims to further improve the
attainment of pupils in receipt of
free school meals (FSM).

Identify the main features of the
revised strategy.

Consider accountability measures
and new strategies intended to
accelerate the progress of this group
of learners.

Paul Warren, Strategic
Lead for School
Improvement

Keri Cole, Chief Education
Officer

Self-Evaluation

Provide an update on the LA self-
evaluation process.

Identify strengths across the
education directorate and specify the
areas for improvement

Paul Warren, Strategic
Lead for School
Improvement

Keri Cole, Chief Education
Officer

Safeguarding

To provide an annual report to
update members regarding
developments

Key national and local developments

Sarah Ellis, Lead for
Inclusion and ALN




2T obed

Appendix 1

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme - May 2019 - May 2020

Meeting Date: 5" November 2019

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Youth Service Pilot

To report on the outcomes of the
Youth Service’s pilot work in the
Caerphilly East area. Cabinet
has determined that this work will
be fully evaluated in the Autumn
term.

The pilot seeks to demonstrate the worth of
conducting general youth work in a more
flexible and inclusive way. If successfully
demonstrated, a determination will be made
as to whether this approach can be rolled
out to all sections of the Borough.

Paul O’Neill, Senior Youth
Service Manager

Period Dignity Update

Identify progress against the
period dignity action plan.

¢ |dentify how the period dignity grant has
been utilised and consider the impact on
pupils’ wellbeing across Caerphilly.

¢ |dentify how the grant funding has been
spent in support of the action plan

Keri Cole, Chief Education
Officer

Schools Causing Concern

To report on the progress of
schools currently listed on the
Schools Causing Concern
register.

e Ascertain the number of schools
currently listed on the SCC register.

e Consider the number of schools
removed from the SCC register over the
last twelve months

e Consider additional schools placed on
the SCC register over the last twelve
months.

e Consider the range of evidence to
determine inclusion on the SCC register.

Identify the strategies to support schools

that are listed on the SCC register

Keri Cole, Chief Education
Officer




¢T obed

Appendix 1

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme - May 2019 - May 2020

MTFP Special. Meeting Date: 9™ December 2019

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Medium-Term Financial
Plan. Draft Savings
Proposals

To update Members with regards
to the Directorates draft budget
savings proposals for 2020-21

To consult with Members as part of the
Authority’s budget process.

Jane Southcombe
Finance Manager
(Education and Lifelong
Learning and Schools)




T abed

Appendix 1

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme - May 2019 - May 2020

Meeting Date: 13™" January 2020

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Performance Management

Richard Edmunds, Corporate
Director for Education &
Corporate Services

Steve Harris, Interim Head
of Business Improvement
Services

EAS Business Plan

Ed Pryce, Interim Strategic
Service and Policy Lead at
EAS

‘Shared Ambitions’ Update

Keri Cole, Chief Education
Officer

Sue Richards, Head of
Education, Planning &
Strategy

Key Stage 4 & 5
Performance

Identify attainment and

achievement of pupils at end of

Key Stage 4 and end of Key
Stage 5

Identify attainment and achievement
of FSM pupils at end of Key Stage 4
and end of Key Stage 5

Identify attainment and achievement
of boys at end of Key Stage 4 and
end of Key Stage 5

Keri Cole, Chief Education
Officer
+ EAS




GT obed

Appendix 1

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme - May 2019 - May 2020

Meeting Date: 24" February 2020

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Schools Capital

To consider recommendations for

Members to consider the school bids and

Sue Richards, Head of

Programme the allocation of resources for recommendations for the allocation of funds | Education Planning &
2020/21 financial year prior to against the different component parts of the | Strategy
being presented to Cabinet 2020/21 Education Capital Programme.
Andrea West 215t Century
Schools Manager
Library Standards To provide Scrutiny members The Welsh Government Public Library Sue Richards, Head of

with details of the Welsh
Governments annual standards
assessment of Caerphilly Library
Service 2018/19

Standards 2017/2020 includes a range of 12
core entitlements, 16 quality indicators, 10
of which have targets assigned to them.
This includes qualitative data in addition to
traditional input and output information, and
a number of case studies

Education Planning &
Strategy




9T abed

Appendix 1

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme - May 2019 - May 2020

Meeting Date: 315t March 2020

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Youth Forum Priorities

To advise Scrutiny on the
outcomes of the Youth Forum
conference in determining young
people’s key priority issues to be
worked against tin the coming
year.

To seek acceptance and approval from
Scrutiny to support the youth
Service’s/young people’s efforts in relation
to addressing the priority issues and support
the elevation of this request to Cabinet.

Paul O’Neill, Senior Youth
Service Manager

Faith Schools

To update Members on the
current Faith provision available
for CCBC pupils.

Capacity

Demand

Admission Numbers
Transport

Sue Richards, Head of
Education, Planning &
Strategy

Andrea West 215t Century
Schools Manager




/T obed

Appendix 1

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme - May 2019 - May 2020

Meeting Date: 18™" May 2020

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Additional Support Review

To provide members with
information regarding the
outcome of the review

e Delegation of additional support
e Responsibilities of schools and LAS
in relation to meeting ALN

Sarah Ellis, Lead for
Inclusion and ALN




gT obed

Appendix 1

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme - May 2019 - May 2020

Date to be Confirmed

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

EAS VFM

Richard Edmunds, Corporate
Director for Education &
Corporate Services




6T obed

Appendix 1.

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2019 — May 2020

Meeting Date: 24th September 2019

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Budget Monitoring

First budget monitoring report of
the year, to provide Members
with an update on the forecast
outturn position for 2019-20.

To ensure Members are updated with
regards to any projected variances to the
2019-20 budget plan

Jane Southcombe
Finance Manager
(Education and Lifelong
Learning and Schools)

Elective Home Education
Update

To provide information for
members regarding the situation
in CCBC

e National and local developments
e Numbers of pupils
e Processes

Sarah Ellis, Lead for
Inclusion and ALN




0¢ abed

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2019 — May 2020

Meeting Date: 5" November 2019

Subject Purpose Key Issues Witnesses
215t Century Schools To provide members with an e Band A Sue Richards, Head of
Update update on the 215t Century o Project Delivery Update Education, Planning &
Schools Programme o Financial Update Strategy
e BandB

o Changes to Intervention rates | Andrea West, 215' Century

o Financial update Schools Manager

o Business Cases

o School Organisation Code

o Consultation requirements.




T¢ obed

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2019 — May 2020

Meeting Date: 9'" December 2019

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses




2¢ obed

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2019 — May 2020

Meeting Date: 13™" January 2020

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Budget Monitoring

Second budget monitoring report
of the year, to provide Members
with an update on the forecast
outturn position for 2019-20.

To ensure Members are updated with
regards to any projected variances to the
2019-20 budget plan.

Jane Southcombe
Finance Manager
(Education and Lifelong
Learning and Schools)

ALN Act Update.

To provide members with an
update regarding readiness for
the Act and new Code

Requirements of the Act and Code
Readiness

Developments to date

Next steps

Sarah Ellis, Lead for
Inclusion and ALN

School Admission
Arrangements 2021-22

To consult scrutiny members on
the proposed Council’'s admission
arrangements for the 2021/22
prior to consideration by Cabinet.

Members invited to offer comments on the
proposed admission arrangements for the
2021/22 academic year as part of the
annual consultative process.

Sue Richards, Head of
Education Planning and
Strategy




ez abed

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2019 — May 2020

Meeting Date: 24" February 2020

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses




vz abed

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2019 — May 2020

Meeting Date: 315t March 2020

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

WESP Update on new
guidelines

To provide members with an
update of the changes to
regulations and requirements in
the new plan and update on
progress to date

Report to include:

Highlight changes in requirements for
the WESP

Highlight achievements of the
current plan during 2019

Sarah Mutch,, Early Years
Manager

Categorisation

Inform Scrutiny Members of the
national school categorisation
system and Caerphilly school
categorisations.

Process of categorisation

Schools in inspection follow-up or in
an Estyn category

Self evaluation and the capacity to
improve

Regional standardisation and
moderation processes

National verification processes

Paul Warren, Strategic
Lead for School
Improvement

Keri Cole, Chief Education
Officer

Inspections Profile

Inform members of the
judgements made by Estyn
inspection teams of Caerphilly
schools for the academic year
2018-2019 and 2019-20 to date
(where published) and provide a
summary of Caerphilly schools’
inspection judgements since the
introduction of the new Common
inspection Framework in

Overview of the Estyn Inspection
Framework
Evaluation of judgements

Paul Warren, Strategic
Lead for School
Improvement

Keri Cole, Chief Education
Officer




Gz abed

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

September 2017.

218t Century Schools
Update

To provide members with an
update on the 215t Century
Schools Programme

Band A and Band B 215t Century
Schools and Education update to
include

o Project Delivery
o Financial Update

Sue Richards, Head of
Education, Planning &
Strategy

Andrea West, 215t Century
School Manager




Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2019 — May 2020

Meeting Date: 18" May 2020

Subject Purpose Key Issues Witnesses
Childcare Offer Update To provide members with an Report to include: Sarah Mutch
update on the Childcare Offerto | ¢ Take up of places / applications Manager, Early Years.
date . Any demographic data available
. Any changes to future

implementation / delivery proposed
by Welsh Government

9z abed




/¢ abed

Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2019 — May 2020

Meeting Date: TBC

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

EOTAS Update (Keri
asked if we could re-
schedule in light of waiting
for new information?) New
date TBC

Keri Cole, Chief Education
Officer




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



62 abed

Appendix 2 - Forward Work Programme - Cabinet

Date Title Key Issues Author Cabinet Member
Updated Code of Corporate
Governance and Terms of
02/10/19 10:30 Reference To approve the updated code Harris, Stephen R;#211 Clir. Jones, Barbara;#210

Authorisation of Officers in

02/10/19 10:30 Public Protection- EU Exit

Hafodyrynys Air Quality
Direction - Compulsory

02/10/19 10:40 Purchase Order Process

To inform Cabinet of changes to the legislation
required as a result of the UK's exit from the
European Union to ensure a seamless transition of  Hartshorn, Robert;#23

To obtain Cabinet agreement on the Compulsory
Purchase process on Hafodyrynys Road. Godfrey, Maria;#20

This report seeks Cabinet approval to instigate CPO
proceedings on three freeholders of properties at
Pentrebane Street that are identified for demolition
to facilitate a mixed use regeneration scheme in
partnership with Linc Housing Association. A mixture
of Welsh Government Targeted Regeneration
Investment funding, WG Social Housing Grant and

Pentrebane Street, Caerphilly - Linc's own finances have been identified to fund the
02/10/19 10:50 Possibe use of CPO Powers

National Development
Framework Consultation

02/10/19 11:00 Response

demolition and redevelopment. Kyte, Rhian;#249

To seek Cabinet approval for a response to the
consultation on the National Development
Framework. Kyte, Rhian;#249

Clir. Stenner, Eluned;#248

Clir. Stenner, Eluned;#248

Cllr. Morgan, Sean;#264

Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;#248




0€ abed

ERDF 4.4 Funding

opportunities - The Lawn

Industrial Estate, Rhymney
02/10/19 11:15 and Ty Du, Nelson

Annual Improvement Report
16/10/19 10:30 2018/19

Annual Performance Report
16/10/19 10:50 2018

16/10/19 11:15 Corporate Volunteering

Land at Pontymister Industrial
16/10/19 11:20 Estate

16/10/19 11:25 Free Swim Initiative

This report outlines the opportunities open to the

Council to bid for additional ERDF monies for for

each of these live European funded employment

new build projects. The report requests the

necessary match funding be made available to

secure these additional funds. Kyte, Rhian;#249

To present the Annual Improvement Report for
2018/19 Harris, Stephen R;#211

To discuss and present the draft Annual
Performance Report Roberts, Ros;#202

To consider our options for the establishment of a Peters,
Corporate Volunteering Scheme on a Directorate or Kathryn;#278;#Street,
Whole Organisation basis. Dave;#214

The matter has been consulted on with local Risca

members and 2 of the 5 members have raised

objections to the proposed sale principle. While any

development would be subject to planning

considerations, the scrutiny committee's views are

being sought on the principle of the sale prior to

consideration by cabinet. Williams, Mark;#247

Changes to Grant Funding to deliver the Welsh
Government Free Swimming Initiative Reynolds, Jeff;#230

Cllr. Morgan, Sean;#264

Cllr. Jones, Barbara;#210

Cllr. Jones, Barbara;#210

Cllr. Cuss, Carl J.;#228

Clir. Phipps, Lisa;#246

Cllr. George, Nigel;#229



T¢ obed

Future Management
Arrangements - Cwmcarn
30/10/19 00:00 Drive

Chartist Gardens -
30/10/19 10:30 Development Options

30/10/19 10:30 Respite Care Provision

Community Sport - Regional
30/10/19 10:30 Agenda

13/11/19 10:30 20/21 Draft Budget Proposals
13/11/19 11:00 Proposed Use of Reserves
13/11/19 11:15 Integrated Wellbeing Hubs

(9) Structured programme of
13/11/19 11:25 service reviews to be agreed

(11) Commercial and

Investment Strategy to be

drafted and approved by
13/11/19 11:35 Cabinet

For Cabinet to consider a partnership agreement
with NRW in respect of future management

arrangements for the re-opening of the forest drive.

To seek approval of the development proposal and
associated financial model prior to submitting
scheme for planning approval.

Possible relocation of current respite facilities to a
bespoke facility dependent on funding from WG

To consider future delivery options for community
sport on a regional (pan "Gwent") basis.
To discuss the draft budget proposals

To consider proposals for the use of reserves.

To provide an update to Cabinet

Strategic Action Plan - item to be agreed.

Strategic Plan - item to be approved

Kyte, Rhian;#249

Couzens,
Shaun;#159;#Williams,
Mark;#247

Williams, Jo;#279

Lougher, Jared;#294
Harris, Stephen R;#211
Harris, Stephen R;#211

Street, Dave;#214

Harris, Stephen R;#211

Harrhy, Christina;#221

Cllr.

Cllr.

Cllr.

Cllr.

Cllr.

Cllr.

Cllr.

Cllr

Cllr.

Morgan, Sean;#264

Phipps, Lisa;#246

Cuss, Carl J.;#228

George, Nigel;#229
Jones, Barbara;#210
Jones, Barbara;#210

Cuss, Carl J.;#228

. Jones, Barbara;#210

Poole, David;#282



Z2€ abed

Renewable Energy Generation

27/11/19 10:30 - Tredomen Campus
Cabinet Forward Work
11/12/19 11:00 Programme
Community Asset Transfer
Policy to be finalised and
approved by Cabinet (16-
#Team Caerphilly Strategic
15/01/20 10:30 Action Plan)

Heads of the Valleys
12/02/20 10:30 Masterplan

11/03/20 10:30 EAS Business Plan

To present a basket of options to Cabinet for
achieving carbon neutrality at the Tredomen
Campus

For discussion and update

Approval by Cabinet of Community Asset Transfer
Policy

The report is seeking the view of members prior to
its presentation to Cabinet, where Cabinet will be
asked to endorse the Draft Masterplan as the basis
for a public consultation exercise.

Williams, Mark;#247

Tranter, Robert J.;#260

Harris, Stephen R;#211

Kyte, Rhian;#249

Cole, Keri;#272

Cllr. Morgan, Sean;#264

Cllr. Jones, Barbara;#210

Cllr. Phipps, Lisa;#246

Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;#248

Cllr. Marsden, Philippa;#250



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMMES

APPENDIX 3

Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme Prioritisation

Is the issue of strategic
importance?

There is concern of poor
performance or a significant
budgetary issue has been
identified

Issue highlighted by an
Auditor, Regulator or
Inspector, which identified
areas for improvement or

Issue identified as corporate
priority or identified as
service or corporate risk

Change to Legislation or
Guidance

Evidence of public
dissatisfaction (e.g. Public
Satisfaction Survey)

fTfteeet

Is the topic timely? Will
scrutiny be able to make
recommendations?

Suitable for Scrutiny
Forward Work
Programme

Suitable as Task and Finish
group review

Unsuitable for Scrutiny
Forward Work
Programme




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Agenda Item 7

W
CAERPHILLY

CAERFFrFIZs
>

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 24/09/2019

SUBJECT: FREE SCHOOL MEALS (FSM) STRATEGY

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION & CORPORATE SERVICES

11

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To outline the education strategy that aims to further improve the attainment of pupils in receipt
of free school meals (FSM).

SUMMARY

The report summarises the revised strategy to improve the attainment of this group of pupils.
The strategy recognises the need to accelerate improvement taking account of local and
national data. The document includes the following areas:

Effective use of grant funding;

The role of schools in raising attainment;

The role of the Local Authority in raising attainment;
The role of parents/carers;

The role of other partners.

The strategy also recognises that some pupils, in receipt of free school meals, attain in line or
above the expected level at all stages of education from Early Years to end of Key Stage 5.
However, the document aims to ensure that all pupils, regardless of prior attainment, make
very good progress throughout their school education. In addition to sharpening
accountability processes in place to monitor, track and evaluate the progress of this group of
learners, the document identifies the establishment of a new ‘Pupil Aspiration Board’ which
aims to specify and share the very best practice taking place across Caerphilly Schools.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are requested to note the contents of this report.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To ensure that Members are fully informed of the revised strategy for improving the
attainment, achievement and provision for pupils eligible for free school meals.

Members will be able to monitor the progress of this group of learners and ascertain the
impact of the revised strategy.

Page 35 Page 1 of 27



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

THE REPORT

20.3% percent of Caerphilly pupils on roll of statutory school age are entitled to free school
meals (taken from Pupil Level Annual School Census 2018), ranking the authority 20th out of
the 22 local authorities in Wales.

Attendance of FSM pupils in secondary schools has consistently been below the Welsh
average. However, in 2018 it was above the Welsh average (Caerphilly — 89.8% vs Wales —
89.6%)

Attendance of FSM pupils in primary schools has generally been below the Welsh average.
However, in 2018 it was in line with the Welsh average (Caerphilly — 92.2% vs 92.1%).

The number of days lost to exclusions for FSM pupils in the secondary phase has steadily
increased over time. However, there has been a slight reduction in 2019. The number of
fixed term exclusions for FSM pupils has also increased.

Performance at the end of Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 compares favourably to the
Welsh average. However, performance at the end of Key Stage 3 compares unfavourably.

Performance of FSM pupils at Key Stage 4 in the Level 2+ indicator has been consistently
below the Welsh average. In 2018, it was 24% compared to 29.4%. However, the Level 2+
indicator is broadly in line with an LA with similar numbers of pupils in receipt of free school
meals.

Performance of FSM pupils at Key Stage 4 in the English measure has been consistently
below the Welsh average. In 2018, it was 34.3% compared to 38.7%. It was also below the
LAs with similar numbers of pupils in receipt of free school meals.

Performance of FSM pupils at Key Stage 4 in the Welsh 1 language measure has improved
over time. In 2018, it was above the Welsh average (53.3% vs. 46.9%)

Performance of FSM pupils at Key Stage 4 in the mathematics measure (best of maths or
numeracy) has been consistently below the Welsh average. In 2018, it was 36.9% vs 39.3%.
However, over three years, it has been broadly above the LA with similar numbers of pupils in
receipt of free school meals.

For the last two years, the Capped 9 measure has been below the Welsh average. In 2018, it
was 277.05 compared to 291.13. It was also below the LA with similar number of pupils in
receipt of free school meals.

To achieve the LA’s ambition it is recognised that new approaches and refined systems are
required across Caerphilly, if there is going to be a significant improvement in narrowing
attainment gaps and improving life chances for FSM pupils. This strategy aims, therefore, to
support the development of robust processes and partnerships, identify good practice and
ensure the effective use of all available resources.

In its initial year, the strategy will largely focus on the quality of teaching and provision in
schools, alongside initiatives to increase attendance and reduce the number of exclusions.

The accompanying appendix contains the FSM Strategy, detailing the scale of ambition to
improve the performance of this group of learners.

Page 36 Page 2 of 27



6.1

7.1

7.3

7.4

8.1

9.1

ASSUMPTIONS

No related assumptions have been felt to be necessary in relation to this report.

LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES

The Caerphilly Council corporate plan (including Well-being objective — Improve education
opportunities for all) identifies the following targets linked to the attainment and achievement of
FSM:

¢ Aim to reduce the impact of poverty within early years

e Continued delivery of the Flying Start programme to help improve access, take up and
attendance

e Continued delivery of the Families First programme to help improve access, take up and
attendance

¢ Reduce impact of poverty on attainment for both vocational and non-vocational
qualifications to provide equality of opportunity

¢ More effectively track progress of vulnerable groups and monitor impact of interventions on
outcomes

¢ Increase engagement and support for young people who are at risk of or are currently
NEET to secure destinations and realise their potential.

The Shared Ambitions strategy identifies the Local Authority’s commitment to improving
attainment for all pupils, as well as outlining how this will be achieved in partnership with the
Education Achievement Service and schools. The document identifies a series of action points
to address the differential in attainment between FSM and non-FSM pupils.

The Service Improvement Plan is an annual document that coordinates the strategic direction
of all services across the education directorate through a series of action plans. In 2019, the
service improvement plan identified the need to improve the attainment of vulnerable groups,
including FSM pupils. Objectives set in the plan are monitored on a termly basis.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

The Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 makes
reference to the following:

e A healthier Wales, supporting vulnerable learners can improve their well-being and
educational achievement;

¢ A more equal Wales, a society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what
their background is;

o A Wales of cohesive communities, improving quality of life with attractive, viable, safe and
well connected communities.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

The Equality Impact Assessment is not required because the report is presenting an updated
strategy that does not impact on current partnership working.

Page 37 Page 3 of 27



10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

12.2

13.

13.1

Author:
E-mail:

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications with respect to this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no personal implications with respect to this report.

CONSULTATIONS

There are no consultation responses that have not been reflected in this report.

STATUTORY POWER

Local Government Act 1972.

Paul Warren, Strategic Lead for School Improvement
warrepl@caerphilly.gov.uk

Consultees:

Christina Harrhy, Interim Chief Executive

Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services

Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director, Education and Corporate Services
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer

Sue Richards, Head of Service — Education Planning & Strategy

Sarah Ellis, Lead for Inclusion & ALN

Sarah Mutch, Early Years Manager

Jane Southcombe, Finance Manager

Councillor Teresa Parry, Chair Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Philippa Marsden, Cabinet Member for Education and Achievement
Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities & Welsh Language)
Debbie Harteveld, Education Achievement Service

Ros Roberts, Performance Management

Rob Tranter, Legal Services

Steve Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services

Appendix 1: Strategy for improving the attainment, achievement and provision for pupils eligible

for free school meals.

Page 38 Page 4 of 27


mailto:warrep1@caerphilly.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol

Directorate of Education and Corporate Services

Strategy for improving the
attainment, achievement and
provision for pupils eligible
for free school meals
2018 — 2019

’\/

R _Y
A greener place LAERDHILLY
Man gwyrddach CAERFFILI
4

Page 39 Page 5 of 27



Contents
1. Introduction

2. Links to wider educational strategy
i.  Caerphilly Local Authority corporate plan 2018-23
ii.  Shared Ambitions
iii. Service Improvement Plan
iv.  Self-evaluation processes
v.  EAS Business Plan

3. Creating a strategy informed by research
i.  Pre-school research
i.  Evidence of the impact of deprivation on outcomes
i. Effective school strategies

4. Effective use of grant funding
i.  Pupil Deprivation Grant
ii. Looked After Pupil Development Grant
iii. Early Years Pupil Development Grant
iv. ~ PDG Access Fund
v.  Additional funding opportunities

5. Role of schools
i.  Leadership
ii.  Culture, ambition and aspiration
iii.  Teaching and learning
iv.  Enrichment activities

6. Role of the Local Authority — operational activities

i Educational Welfare Service
i Inclusion Services
ii.  Youth Services
iii. NEETS
iv.  Healthy Schools
V. Finance
Vi. Music Service
vii.  Early Years
viii.  Safeguarding
ix. 21t Century Schools
X. Recruitment

xi. EOTAS
xii.  Library Services

Xiii. IT Services
Xiv. Education Data Team

7. Role of parents/carers
8. Role of other partners

9. Accountability processes with regards to the performance of FSM
i.  Self-evaluation
i.  Schools Causing Concern meetings

Page 40 Page 6 of 27



ii.  Local Authority Quality Assurance meetings
iii.  Service Improvement Plan

iv.  Education Scrutiny meetings

V. Estyn

10. How will we know the strategy is successful?

Appendix 1: the Caerphilly profile of FSM learners (all data based on statutory school age)

Page a1 Page 7 of 27



1. Introduction

‘Breaking the cycle of poverty and disadvantage is paramount, and at the heart of our national
mission to raise standards for all our learners.’

Kirsty Williams 6 April 2019, WG Release

This document is our updated and revised strategy, and recognises that our FSM learners are
children and young people who are vulnerable to poorer outcomes because of the barriers presented
by poverty. The strategy identifies what has been achieved to date, priorities going forward and is
intended to close the educational achievement gaps for this group of vulnerable pupils. It also sets
out examples of good practice in schools and the most effective strategies that are having some
impact in narrowing achievement gaps and promoting greater social mobility. The strategy is aligned
to the key objectives of Welsh Government and the Education Achievement Service (EAS), providing
a direct link between national, regional and local aspirations

The education directorate has a duty to ensure that all pupils achieve success and experience
positive outcomes, irrespective of background. The circumstances of a child’s birth and the family’s
social and economic conditions can determine success in the education system and workplace.
Social mobility does not mean that only more able FSM pupils should be supported to realise their
potential, but that all children and young people who experience disadvantage should be helped to
make much better progress than many of them currently achieve.

Integral to the success of this strategy will be a relentless ambition for all senior leaders across the
Local Authority to ensure good progress and high expectations for FSM learners. Effective
educational leaders set high aspirations for all FSM pupils and create a high quality inclusive learning
environment, targeting resources and interventions to ensure maximum impact, so that gaps narrow
and outcomes and destinations are more positive.

A key national policy has been the implementation of the Pupil Development Grant, with the
expectation that this funding will be used effectively to raise attainment for pupils who are eligible for
free school meals and thereby close achievement gaps between these pupils and their peers.

This strategy aims to prioritise and coordinate all the effective approaches and activities across our
services, schools and early years settings that are focused on ensuring every child and young person
in Caerphilly achieves their full potential.

The Caerphilly context

There are significant levels of deprivation within the Local Authority with 29.7% of statutory school
age pupils living in 20% of the most disadvantaged areas in Wales. 14 of the 110 areas in the
Caerphilly county borough are in the top 10% of the most disadvantaged areas in Wales.

20.3% percent of Caerphilly pupils on roll of statutory school age are entitled to free school meals
(taken from Pupil Level Annual School Census 2018), ranking the authority 20th out of the 22 local
authorities in Wales.

Although the percentage of learners living in workless households within Caerphilly county borough
has decreased, the percentage remains higher than the Wales average and is the second highest
amongst local authorities in South East Wales.

Caerphilly County Borough Council is committed to tackling the causes of poverty and ensures the
five anti-poverty grant programmes are working collaboratively to maximise reach to the most
vulnerable.

The size of this challenge is clear from the evidence given below:

Page 42 Page 8 of 27



Attendance of FSM pupils in primary schools has generally been below the Welsh average.
However, in 2018 it was in line with the Welsh average (Caerphilly — 92.2% vs 92.1%).

Attendance of FSM pupils in secondary schools has consistently been below the Welsh average.
However, in 2018 it was above the Welsh average (Caerphilly — 89.8% vs Wales — 89.6%)

The number of days lost to exclusions for FSM pupils in the primary phase has steadily increased
from 176.5 days in 2013 to 298.5 days in 2018. However, there has been a slight reduction in 2019
to 273.5 days.

The number of days lost to exclusions for FSM pupils in the secondary phase has steadily increased
from 181 days in 2013 to 1212 days in 2018. There has been a slight reduction in 2019 to 930.5
days. The number of fixed term exclusions for FSM pupils has increased from 63 in 2013 to 348 in
2018.

Performance at the end of Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 compares favourably to the Welsh
average. However, performance at the end of Key Stage 3 compares unfavourably.

Performance of FSM pupils at Key Stage 4 in the Level 2+ indicator has been consistently below the
Welsh average. In 2018, it was 24% compared to 29.4%. However, the Level 2+ indicator is broadly
in line with an LA with similar numbers of pupils in receipt of free school meals (Merthyr Tydfil LA).

Performance of FSM pupils at Key Stage 4 in the English measure has been consistently below the
Welsh average. In 2018, it was 34.2% compared to 38.7%. It was also below the LA with similar
numbers of pupils in receipt of free school meals (Merthyr Tydfil LA — 36.9%).

Performance of FSM pupils at Key Stage 4 in the Welsh 1%t language measure has improved over
time. In 2018, it was above the Welsh average (53.3% vs. 46.9%).

Performance of FSM pupils at Key Stage 4 in the mathematics measure (best of maths or numeracy)
has been consistently below the Welsh average. In 2018, it was 36.9% vs 39.3%. However, over
three years, it has been broadly above the LA with similar numbers of pupils in receipt of free school
meals (Merthyr Tydfil LA).

For the last two years, the Capped 9 measure has been below the Welsh average. In 2018, it was
277.05 compared to 291.13. It was also below the LA with similar number of pupils in receipt of free
school meals.

To deliver this ambition it is recognised that further work, new approaches and systems are required
across Caerphilly, if there is going to be a significant improvement in narrowing attainment gaps and
improving life chances for FSM pupils. This strategy aims, therefore, to support the development of
robust processes and partnerships, identify good practice and ensure the effective use of all available
resources.

Page 43 Page 9 of 27



2. Links to wider educational strategies

i. Caerphilly Council Wellbeing Objectives 2018-23

Corporate Plan
2018-2023

~
|

ii. Shared Ambitions

Shared Ambitions

ung pe

-
SAERPHILLY
CAERFFILI
-

In March 2018, Caerphilly Council adopted a set of Wellbeing Objectives for
2018-2023 within its Corporate Plan. The ‘council has a statutory duty to set
Well-being Objectives using the five sustainable development principles under
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015’.

The Corporate Plan is the Council’s over-arching vision, supported by clear
objectives and priorities. Within the Plan, “Improve education opportunities for
all” was selected as Wellbeing Objective 1. The corporate plan identifies the
following targets linked to the attainment and achievement of FSM:

Aim to reduce the impact of poverty within early years
e Continued delivery of the Flying Start programme to help improve
access, take up and attendance.
e Continued delivery of the Families First programme to help improve
access, take up and attendance.
¢ Increase the number of eligible working families accessing the free
Childcare Offer.

Reduce impact of poverty on attainment for both vocational and non-
vocational qualifications to provide equality of opportunity

o More effectively track progress of vulnerable groups and monitor
impact of interventions on outcomes.

o Develop the role of person centred practice (PCP) champion and
embed person centred practice in targeted schools.

e Increase engagement and support for young people who are at risk of
or are currently NEET to secure destinations and realise their
potential.

¢ Reconfigure the core Youth Service to ensure that young people with
the most need are supported to achieve, whether by formal or non-
formal means.

The Shared Ambitions strategy identifies the Local Authority’s commitment to
improving attainment for all pupils, as well as outlining how this will be
achieved in partnership with the Education Achievement Service and schools.
The document identifies a series of action points to address the differential in
attainment between FSM and non-FSM pupils:

Target for Improvement:
Improve the outcomes of pupils identified as e-FSM across all phases of

education.
Actions by schools:

e Ensure an appropriate focused profile in school, e.g., SLT, Governing
Body agendas etc.

o Employ a multi-agency approach towards improving provision.

e Develop and enhance mentoring programmes.

o |dentify appropriate staff to support, e.g., family, engagement officer,
learning coach.

Page 10 of 27
Page 44



e Provide bespoke enrichment experiences as appropriate.
e Review target setting processes for this group of pupils.

Actions by Local Authority:

e LA to explore increasing access to free school meal application.

e  Work within Council departments to develop a comprehensive work
experience programme, with prioritisation for this group of learners.

¢ Increase the access to the Music service and other enrichment
programmes.

¢ Maximise funding streams to promote engagement in extra curricular
activities.

e Celebrate achievements, particularly of those in EOTAS settings.

e Challenge targets for this group through Intervention Planning
meetings and Education Improvement Boards.

Actions by Education Achievement Service:

o Facilitate half-termly professional learning sessions with the
nominated school leads for vulnerable learners in each secondary
school, with a focus on improving identification, tracking and target
setting, provision and pace of progress for vulnerable learners.

o Embed the professional learning opportunities for governors on
challenging the use and impact of the pupil development grant and
other allocated resource on the progress and outcomes of vulnerable
learners.

iii. Service Improvement Plan 2019

The Service Improvement Plan is an annual document that coordinates the
SERVICE strategic direction of all services across the education directorate through a

IMPROVEMENT series of action plans.
PLAN

In 2019, the service improvement plan identified the need to improve the
attainment of vulnerable groups, including FSM pupils. Objectives set in the
plan are monitored on a termly basis through the SIP monitoring and
evaluation document.

Targets relating to FSM in the current Service Improvement Plan include:
Data and systems: Improve collection, tracking and monitoring of data with

reference to FSM pupils. Make effective use of the data to improve
performance of vulnerable pupils.

Attendance: Improve tracking, monitoring of attendance data with reference
to FSM pupils. Make effective use of the data to improve attendance of this
vulnerable group. Reduce the number of excluded related to FSM pupils.

Early Years: Improve tracking, monitoring and responding — vulnerable
groups (children living in the most disadvantaged households likely to be FSM
when they reach school age).

Music Service: Improve tracking and monitoring of data with reference to
FSM pupils. Make effective use of the data to improve performance of this
vulnerable group.

Page 11 of 27
Page 45



iv.  Caerphilly Local Authority Self Evaluation Processes

Caerphilly LA self evaluation is a cyclical process that aims to provide an
evidence base upon which to arrive at judgements about pupil outcomes and
progress, quality of provision and the effectiveness of leadership and
management of Education Services. Outcomes from the self-evaluation
support the targets and actions in the Shared Ambitions and Service
Improvement Plan documents. The current summary identifies the following
areas for improvement:

e Improve the performance of boys and pupils identified as e-FSM
across all phases of education. Work alongside school improvement
partners to implement a series of measures to increase accountability
for all stakeholders.

¢ Refine current procedures to monitor and track ‘risk’ pupils to ensure
that all categories of vulnerability are taken into account. Work
alongside school improvement partners to monitor, challenge and
support schools in order to raise attainment for these students.

v. EAS Business Plan 2018-21

The EAS Business Plan 2018-21, the regional strategic plan for accelerating
educational outcomes, identifies the strategies to raise the attainment of FSM

pupils.
The plan identifies the following target:

Continue to raise aspiration, improving pupil outcomes, particularly for
groups of vulnerable learners (FSM, gender, EAL, more able (MA) and
LAC) by:
¢ Ensuring that the regional school improvement strategy is based upon
evidence-based research.

The South East Wales
Regional Mission:

oot >/ ¢ Ensuring that all schools and settings receive high-quality, bespoke

(2018-2021)
support in line with their needs, to accelerate progress and improve

outcomes.

e Supporting and challenging the quality and accuracy of school
planning and self-evaluation.

e Continuing to work closely with LAs (as appropriate with Diocesan
Directors) to ensure a more consistent approach in the use of
statutory powers to accelerate progress in schools.

e Further developing pupil-level target setting and progress measures
for all learners and groups of learners across all key stages.

e Collecting progress towards targets information through a
differentiated approach, using a range of first-hand evidence to verify
submitted data.

Page 12 of 27
Page 46



3. Evidence based research

i. Pre-school research

The ‘Effective Preschool, Primary and Secondary Education’ project (EPPSE 3-16+) research
considered how children’s outcomes are influenced by preschool experience and makes a persuasive
argument that early investment can pay long term dividends. It is a longitudinal study following
children through their preschool experiences at 3 years and throughout their childhood to analyse the
impact beyond compulsory education. Going to high quality preschool influenced both attainment
and progress in early school careers and set children on particularly beneficial learning trajectories,
especially if they came from more disadvantaged backgrounds. It cannot however, do this in isolation.
To improve outcomes for children they need supportive families with stimulating home learning
environments, high quality preschool provision, followed by effective primary and secondary school.
(EPPSE 3-16+ Research Brief, June 2015, B Taggart et al). This research forms a fundamental basis
for the development and implementation of the Flying Start programme as well as other childcare
developments.

‘Early Childhood Education and Care’ (ECEC) (Dallimore, 2019) is currently receiving additional focus
in Welsh Government, with research papers starting to inform Senedd Research and build a concept
to shape future delivery in Wales. The introductory briefing highlights practice / research both
nationally and internationally, emphasises the importance of earning and education starting from
birth, and poses questions for Ministers to consider when developing the future policy shaping the
direction of our ECEC system.

ii. Research identifying the impact of poverty on Key Stage 4 qualifications

‘Missing Talent’ (Allen, 2015) is a Sutton Trust research project that investigated 7,000 pupils from
disadvantaged backgrounds who scored in the top 10% nationally at the end of primary school but
received a set of GCSE results placing them outside the top 25%. The report suggests that a third
(36%) of bright but disadvantaged boys underachieve at the end of Key Stage 4. More able but poor
girls are slightly less likely to underperform, with just under a quarter (24%) getting disappointing
GCSE results. These figures compare with 16% of boys and 9% of girls from economically
advantaged families who similarly fall behind by age 16.

The report concludes that being from an economically disadvantaged background more than doubles
the chance of missing out on top GCSE grades. This means that bright disadvantaged pupils will on
average score 4As and 4Bs while their equally able classmates from better off backgrounds achieve
8As. One in ten of the poorer but more able pupils barely achieve C grades, lagging behind their
more-advantaged peers by almost a whole GCSE grade per subject.

iii. School strategies

‘Key stage 3: the wasted years’ (Ofsted, 2015) identifies the ineffective use of grant funding,
particularly at Key Stage 3. The reports indicates that additional support was often focused on
intervention activities in Key Stage 4, which often sought to compensate for ineffective practice in the
earlier years of secondary education.

‘Supporting the attainment of disadvantaged pupils: articulating success and good practice’
(November 2015) considered that the most effective strategies to raise the attainment of
disadvantaged pupils focused on teaching and learning, with specific focus on paired or small group
additional teaching; improving feedback; and one-to-one tuition. The research identified seven areas
that would lead a school to improved outcomes for learners:

o Promote an ethos of attainment for all pupils, rather than stereotyping disadvantaged pupils
as a group with less potential to succeed.

Page 13 of 27
Page 47



o Have an individualised approach to addressing barriers to learning and emotional support, at
an early stage, rather than providing access to generic support and focusing on pupils nearing
their end-of-key-stage assessments.

e Focus on high quality teaching first rather than on bolt-on strategies and activities outside
school hours.

e Focus on outcomes for individual pupils rather than on providing strategies.

o Deploy the best staff to support disadvantaged pupils; develop skills and roles of teachers and
TAs rather than using additional staff who do not know the pupils well.

o Make decisions based on data and respond to evidence, using frequent, rather than one-off
assessment and decision points.

¢ Have clear, responsive leadership: setting ever higher aspirations and devolving responsibility
for raising attainment to all staff, rather than accepting low aspirations and variable
performance.

4. Effective use of grant funding

The Education Achievement Service operate and monitor the grants on behalf of the local authority. T

i.  The pupil development grant

The Pupil Development Grant (previously the ‘Pupil Deprivation Grant’) is intended to support schools
to overcome the additional barriers that learners from disadvantaged backgrounds face which prevent
them from attaining as well as their peers, whatever their ability.

The total number of pupils that benefit from the Pupil Development Grant in Caerphilly 2019-20 is
5126. This includes 1968 secondary pupils, 2850 primary pupils, 40 special school pupils and 268
middle school, and O pupils attending pupil referral units (PRUSs). Although there has been some
individual improvements in the attainment of this group of children, particularly at the end of
foundation phase and Year 6, we have yet to see the full impact of this resource.

Recent updates to the grant by Welsh Government have included:

¢ Commitment to fund pupils who require additional support via e-FSM or who are looked after
in primary and secondary schools at a rate of £600 per learner for 2019-20;

o Extending funding to learners who are in EOTAS, rather than just those who are in pupil
referral units;

e Aspiration for 60% of PDG being invested at key stage 3 to address barriers to learning.

As part of the Local Authority self-evaluation process, the following statements are used to evaluate
the impact of the distribution of PDG across schools on pupil outcomes:
¢ What arrangements are in place to monitor the performance, progress and wellbeing of FSM
pupils?
¢ How do we compare the performance of FSM pupils with other similar authorities and national
data?
o What is the performance of pupils eligible for free school meals within the authority at each
stage of learning?
¢ Is data used strategically to improve provision and outcomes for FSM pupils? If so how?
o What is the overall strategy? How does the authority ensure that this strategy reaches the
schools? Is this limited to a few schools or is this strategy well-understood by all?
o How effective is the FSM strategy and what impact is it having on outcomes for pupils?
¢ How does the person with responsibility for monitoring the FSM performance evaluate the
impact of the work undertaken by the EAS?

Page 14 of 27
Page 48



o How does the LA ensure that all schools get the support and challenge they need in relation
to improving provision and outcomes for disadvantaged pupils?

e What is the quality of professional support schools receive from the EAS in improving
outcomes?

¢ What are the rates of persistent absence amongst FSM pupils? How effectively does the
authority monitor these? How effectively does the authority challenge and support schools to
reduce rates of persistent absence amongst FSM pupils?

e How is the PDG used to support EOTAS pupils?

¢ What arrangements are in place to improve family and community engagement in your
schools?

o What support do pupils receive at key stage 3? How are you supporting/challenging schools
to spend in accordance with the 60%/40% split?

o How effective are the research partnerships undertaken by the EAS? What has happened as
a result?

ii.  The LAC pupil development grant

The ‘Pupil Development Grant for Looked After Children’ is used by the regional education consortia

to strategically deliver better targeted and flexible interventions on a regional basis. The funding also

supports interventions aimed at former looked after children who have been adopted from care or are
subject to a special guardianship order. This strategy looks specifically at the outcomes

Although the strategic planning responsibility for the LAC PDG lies with the regional consortium, the
Local Authority is the corporate parent.

As part of the Local Authority self-evaluation process, the following statements are used to evaluate
the impact of the distribution of LAC PDG across schools:
¢ What arrangements are in place to monitor the performance, progress and wellbeing of FSM
LAC pupils?
o What is the performance of LAC FSM pupils at each stage of learning?
¢ How effective is the FSM LAC strategy and what impact is it having on outcomes for pupils?

¢ How does the person with responsibility for monitoring the FSM LAC performance evaluate
the impact of the work undertaken by the EAS?

o How does the LA ensure that all schools get the support and challenge they need in relation
to improving provision and outcomes for disadvantaged pupils?

o What is the quality of professional support schools receive from the EAS in improving
outcomes?

o How effective are the research partnerships undertaken by the EAS? What has happened as
a result?

iii.  The early years pupil development grant

The Early Years PDG extends allocated funding to pupils in nursery and reception classes in funded
Foundation Phase education. As with the PDG, the aim of the Early Years PDG is to accelerate the

rate of attainment of children of all abilities from low income households to help them reach their full

potential. Regional consortia are responsible for ensuring that the grant is used for the purposes for
which it is intended.

he schools EY PDG is administered in conjunction with their main PDG amount and monitored
accordingly. Although there are similar levels of allocation and monitoring within Early Years
Education non-maintained childcare settings, there is a greater involvement from the local authority
early years team in supporting and administering the grant.

Recent updates to the grant by Welsh Government have included:

Page 15 of 27
Page 49



Increasing the Early Years PDG to £179,000 for learners in the Foundation Phase across the
South East Wales consortia region; the Caerphilly apportioned amount for the Pupil
Development Grant is £36,268 with an additional Education Improvement Grant (EIG) of
£8,885. The allocation is calculated based on where the setting is located and the Welsh
Index of Multiple Deprivation. The more disadvantaged an area being served by the setting,
the more funding the setting receives.

Extending the availability of PDG to support three year old looked after children who are in the
Foundation Phase at the same rate as all other looked after learners.

As part of the Local Authority self-evaluation process, the following statements are used to evaluate
the impact of the distribution of the EY PDG across schools and childcare settings delivering the
funded Foundation Phase places:

iv.

How effectively do schools use the grant funding for disadvantaged pupils and how does the
Local Authority know?

What are the arrangements to monitor the quality and effectiveness of plans to spend the
PDG? Do you monitor any evaluations of previous grant spending?

What happens if a school does not use the funding appropriately?

How is good practice identified and shared? Examples?

Are there any arrangements to support schools with smaller amounts of grant funding to work
collaboratively to maximise the impact of funding?

What is the Local Authority admissions information identifying about FSM pupils when they
begin school? How is this information utilised?

The PDG access fund

The PDG Access grant provides assistance for the purchase of:

School uniform including coats and shoes;

School sports kit including footwear;

Uniform for enrichment activities, including but not limited to, scouts, guides, cadets, matrtial
arts; sports; performing arts or dance;

Equipment e.g. school bags and stationery;

Specialist equipment where new curriculum activities begin such as design and technology;
and

Equipment for out of hours trips such as outdoor learning e.g. waterproofs.

This funding is available to pupils who are eligible for free school meals:

Reception class of maintained primary schools in September 2019;

Year 3 class of maintained primary schools in September 2019;

Year 7 of maintained secondary schools in September 2019;

Year 10 of maintained secondary schools in September 2019;

Pupils in special schools, special needs resource bases and pupil referral units who are
entering Reception, Year 3, Year 7 and Year 10 in September 2019.

The funding is available to all looked after children of compulsory school age, irrespective of FSM
entittement. Funding of up to £125 is available for each learner with the exception of those in Year 7.
Eligible learners in Year 7 will be entitled to a maximum of £200.

‘PDG Access Grant’ funding is given directly to families The Local Authority is committed to ensuring
that parents/carers are aware of the fund and receive support in completing the relevant application
where appropriate. The Local Authority is also committed to developing a fund with more sustainable
long term options.

V.

Additional funding opportunities

Page 16 of 27
Page 50



The Local Authority aims to make best use of Welsh Government grants that are intended to benefit
FSM pupils. For example, the criteria for the ‘Reduction of Infant Class Sizes’ grant makes reference
to schools with ‘significant levels of free school meals’. This is taken into account when selecting the
most appropriate schools for the grant.

There are many grants through Welsh Government and European Social Fund that may not directly
impact FSM learners but play a significant role in mitigating the impact of poverty, or improving the
outcomes of vulnerable learners to achieve better outcomes and therefore break the cycle of poverty
| FSM.

The Children and Communities Grant comprises seven programmes, all of which aim to mitigate the
impact of poverty total £9,742,237 for the borough:

e Flying Start works preschool in targeted areas of disadvantage and therefore high FSM
numbers. The programme aims to support child development through quality interventions,
early identify child or family needs, reduce or prevent children entering the care system, and
mitigate the impact of poverty through improved parental and child outcomes.

e Families First is an early intervention programme to support families with multiple needs to
break the cycle of vulnerability including poverty. The programme aims to offer bespoke tailor
made interventions with families to improve child development outcomes, improve families’
resilience, move adults towards the employability programmes by addressing their primary
family needs e.g. mental health and wellbeing, routines, school engagement, or behaviours.

e Legacy programme is about community empowerment and coproduction as well as raising
aspirations and is targeted at our most disadvantaged communities.

e Employability programmes cover the whole borough through a range of Welsh Government
and ESF funding programmes with referrals to a single front door for triage to ensure all adults
and young people have access to the right training / employment support needed. The aim is
to move people into employment as well as to support qualifications / upskilling to improve
employment prospects / increase wages or security.

o Childcare Offer (£2,798,000) funds childcare places for 3-4 year olds who are in part time
Foundation Phase of eligible working parents earning less than £100,000 per year. While this
grant is not aimed at children who are FSM, it does remove childcare as a barrier for
economically inactive parents and encourages parents to work at least 16 hours per week to
become eligible. There are a significant number of applications from households who are not
affluent and may be near the thresholds for FSM. This funded childcare place enables more
money in the household income which supports enrichment activities that previously would
not have been possible as they were just about managing the monthly budget. Currently the
offset of childcare costs for parents is more than £250,000 per month.

e School Holiday Enrichment Programme (SHEP) is a targeted programme in schools with high
FSM percentages. The programme combines two healthy meals per day, nutrition sessions
and physical activity for three weeks of the school holidays. The current funding is £5,000 per
school for up to 40 children.

5. Therole of schools

i. Leadership

Leaders in schools that have had an impact in raising the attainment of disadvantaged pupils know
that there is no one single strategy which leads to success. Rather, effective school leaders, including
governors, create a vision and culture, consistently communicated to staff, pupils and parents, in
which the highest possible achievement of every learner is a priority and an expectation. Leaders in
these schools have a resolute determination that every learner regardless of home background or
starting point will succeed and they both enable and hold staff to account to achieve this. They know
their schools and the needs of individual learners and use data to analyse trends, set targets and
then implement the intervention strategies which will have the most impact on accelerating rates of
progress.

Page 17 of 27
Page 51



The Sutton Trust highlights the importance of a designated senior leader and governor who have a
clear overview of how funding is being allocated, including Pupil Development Grant funding, and the
difference it is making to the progress of disadvantaged pupils.

ii.  Culture —ambition and aspiration

Despite significant research into the range of vulnerable learner strategies adopted by schools and
the use of the Pupil Development Grant, it is clear that there is no one single intervention that has led
to success. Furthermore, schools need to develop a number of bespoke measures tailored to each
school’s circumstance.

The most effective and ambitious schools are those that are open to outside influences, welcome
challenge, are reflective and self- evaluative, are keen to share their good practices with others, work
collaboratively to support, and benefit from, the work of other schools and agencies and are actively
seeking to learn from best practice elsewhere.

Promoting a growth culture or mindset in schools which drives the belief that all children can do better
than expected, makes a significant difference. Where schools act on the basis that all pupils’ innate
abilities and aptitudes can be improved with the right support, and that they do not give up on any
child, it is more likely to get the engagement and effort by all children to do well. Changing learners’
mindsets about their own ability and the value of education itself is also crucial to improving outcomes
for vulnerable learners. A whole range of effective good practice follows from this belief which makes
a significant difference to the outcomes achieved for vulnerable learners.

iii.  Teaching and Learning

One of the key lessons from research about closing achievement gaps is to build on high quality
teaching for all learners, rather than focus on other one off activities and events outside school hours.
Evidence from the Sutton Trust, the Education Endowment Foundation and WG report show that
significant improvement can be made in improving outcomes for FSM learners by:

Improving feedback between teachers and learners
Paired teaching

Small group teaching

One to one tuition

Independent learning strategies

Peer mentoring

Parental involvement

iv. Enrichment activities

The Local Authority also recognises the importance of greater engagement by vulnerable learners in
enrichment activities that help to develop confidence and resilience. These activities, (including sports
and outward bound, performing arts, music lessons, after school clubs and trips) are taken for
granted by many children, but more effort is needed to ensure pupils on free school meals participate
in them and get the benefits. Sometimes this will cost money for individual children and should be
supported by the Pupil Development Grant. The LA encourages schools to use grant funding to
support some pupils to have these opportunities, when they would not otherwise do so.

6. Role of the Local Authority — operational activities

The service areas within the education directorate undertake a range of ongoing roles and
responsibilities that contributes to the attainment of FSM children and young people.
This includes:

Page 18 of 27
Page 52



i Adult Education

The Adult Education Service courses support families of FSM pupils with everyday life e.g.
reading/writing letters, using price comparison websites, filling in forms, managing the family budgets
— all of these skills help to ensure they are able to fully function in society. The classes/ course also
support family engagement. For example, employability skills assist progression to more sustainable
employment, addressing underemployment.

The ESF projects in partnership with the Adult Education Service provide a wide range of vocational
training courses in order for the families of FSM pupils to upskill and find employment.

ii.  Advisory Service

The Advisory teacher caseload is currently prioritised by schools through multi agency planning
meetings and as highlighted through the Statutory process. FSM pupils may feature within this linked
to:
o Qutcomes of capacity building with staff such as:
o Whole school training as identified by schools to enable school to better meet the
needs of learners and raise standards and over come barriers to learning
o Individual teacher / teacher assistant training to support schools to provide for all
learners
o Developing the ALNCo role to coordinate and provide for a range of presenting
individual needs
e Support for identified vulnerable learners through consultation, observations and assessment
and to identify and recommend programmes of learning to reduce barriers to learning and
raise standards
e Provision of individual programmes (Spld)

iii.  ALN Statutory teams

The Statutory Team is responsible for managing the Local Authority’s responsibility and commitment
to ensure that children and young people with additional learning needs have their needs met as
detailed in the Special Educational Needs code of Practice for Wales (2002).

The requests for statutory assessments received by the Local Authority may feature FSM pupils.
Nevertheless the fact that a pupil is in receipt of FSM does not impact the legal process of identifying
if the learner has additional learning needs. Therefore the statutory team does not report on this
indicator.

iv.  Behaviour Support

The Behaviour Support Service works with schools and a range of services both within and external
to the local authority to support schools to meet the needs of pupils who have social, emotional and
behavioural barriers to learning. Pupils who have free school meals are not targeted specifically
however pupils with FSM will be amongst those whom the service supports.

The Behaviour Support Service works with schools at bi-annual planning meetings to identify the
schools priorities both in terms of systemic support to develop approaches to supporting pupils well
being and to identify work with individual pupils. The needs of vulnerable groups are prioritised in this
process. The Behaviour Support Service also responds to schools needs where pupils’ behaviour has
become a concern or where the pupil is at risk of exclusion due to their challenging behaviour.

v. Early Years

The Early Year’s department covers a range of initiatives that directly support FSM children, including
the following:

Page 19 of 27
Page 53



Vi.

Flying Start works in the most disadvantaged LSOA'’s with high proportion of FSM children
offering enhanced health visiting, access to family support and parenting programmes,
support for children to learn to talk and communicate as well as part-time childcare.

Flying Start outreach for vulnerable care leavers / young parents offers family support
throughout pregnancy and early years to reduce the need for the baby to enter the care
system.

The Early Years Pupil Development Grant provides funding to Early Years Education non-
maintained providers allowing childcare settings to purchase resources and attend training.
Assisted and Supported Places offers access to group childcare provision for children with
emerging developmental delays and additional needs who are unable to fund the placement
themselves.

The SRB outreach team works with children of Nursery/Reception school age with severe
speech and language delays offers targeted Speech Language and Communication.
Families Learning Together provides essential skills support often targeted at the most
disadvantaged communities where there is high FSM linking to employability programmes to
support parental aspirations once they have made progress with essential skills

School Holiday Enrichment Programme (SHEP) is a targeted programme in schools with high
FSM percentages. The programme combines two healthy meals per day, nutrition sessions
and physical activity for three weeks of the school holidays.

The Childcare Offer funds childcare places for 3-4 year olds who are in part time Foundation
Phase of eligible working parents thus removing childcare as a barrier for economically
inactive parents.

Educational Welfare Service

The EWS caseload is directed by persistent absentees. However, FSM pupils feature highly in
caseloads and analysis of attendance data. Therefore, the following range of support is offered to
families:

Vil.

Work with individual pupils and families to overcome barriers to attendance

Refer to external agencies for support around mental health, financial difficulties, family
dynamics, benefits

Signposting to tenancy support, medical professionals, Youth Engagement to further support
the family

Provide information of free activities/groups in the area to improve wellbeing

Direct to local food banks, charities — support with food items and uniforms

Support schools in the tracking of FSM pupils in order for them to put interventions in place
Provide advice around the legalities of school attendance and the possible financial
implications

Build bridges between families and schools where relationships have broken down.

Educational Psychology

The Educational Psychology Service bases its allocation of visits to schools on a formula including
the numbers of pupils on roll and the percentage of pupils who receive Free School Meals so those
schools with higher numbers of pupils who are FSM receive a proportionally higher number of visits.
Educational Psychologists work with schools at bi-annual planning meetings to identify the schools
priorities both in terms of systemic support and EP's work with individual pupils. The needs of
vulnerable groups are prioritised in this process.

The EPS also delivers a range of workshops and training packages aimed at raising awareness of
issues and helping schools to develop systems and interventions at both a whole school and
individual level. Although not targeted at pupils with FSM they should benefit a wide range of pupils

Page 20 of 27
Page 54



who might be more vulnerable e.g. Developing Resilience, using Positive Psychology to support well
being.

viii. EOTAS

Work with EOTAS focuses on individual priorities. Young people are often known prior to becoming
EOTAS and have accessed services from EPS and BSS. Pupils with FSM are amongst those
supported.

iX. Finance

The finance team provide support to schools in the distribution of a range of grant funding aimed to
support FSM pupils. This includes the PDG Grant and PDG LAC Grant where finance officers liaise
with schools to ensure that the grant is fully spent. In addition, the PDG EOTAS grant funding is
distributed to each LA as agreed regionally. Funding in recent years has been predominantly directed
to the PRU Learning Centre.

The finance team also support schools in raising awareness with families the terms and conditions of
the PDG Access Grant.

X.  Healthy Schools

Healthy schools provide support to all schools, regardless of their locality. Any training offered is open
to all, and all schools are encouraged to work towards the National Quality Award. We also have 2
EOTAS settings and the PRU fully engaged in the Healthy Schools scheme. Additionally Trinity
Fields School and Resource Centre have achieved the NQA. We also signpost schools to particular
initiatives/projects such as:
e Spectrum, who will deliver to all schools, but place emphasis on particular areas where issues
may be more prevalent.
o D2S targets the areas with highest levels of deprivation
o Police Liaison delivers to all schools but they also deliver specific projects to targeted schools
such as “Mini police”

The school nursing service deliver the immunisation programme to all Primary schools. They highlight
the 10 lowest uptake schools and healthy schools work with these to promote the need for
immunisations. FSM pupils have access to same health care.

All schools, EOTAS settings and youth centres have received red period dignity boxes with a variety
of products suitable for everyone. These boxes are placed so that pupils can easily access them
without embarrassment or stigma.

xi.  Library Services

Library Services are free of charge to all residents in the County Borough, regardless of their
circumstances. This includes joining the Library, borrowing items, placing requests for specific titles
or subjects of interest, etc. Under 16’s do no pay overdue charges or fees for lost or damaged items
of stock. A range of events and activities are available for free to all children, young people, and
adults still in education or training. Examples include:

o Summer Reading Challenge participation
Bookstart pack at child’s 9 month health check
Participation in coding clubs, lego events, storytimes, author/illustrator visits
World Book Day events
Harry Potter night promotions
All ICT facilities and wireless computing provision
Free printing of School or College assignments or information on career or job opportunities
etc.

Page 21 of 27
Page 55



e Free participation in School Engagement initiatives including Digital i-Skills sessions, Reading
for fun passes and ‘genre fiction’ collections at Secondary School level

o Library offers free study space for all and supports EOTAS tutors and pupils to learn in their
communities and in a setting that suits them.

o Each Library offers access to hard copy and online information free of charge including
specialist Parent collections at each of the Council’s 18 locations.

Xil. Music Service

As part of the service level agreement, Caerphilly Music Service offers subsidised lessons for all
schools. Currently, secondary schools are offered a free lesson for every lesson they buy. Primary
schools are offered a free lesson for every two lessons they purchase. This aims to reduce the cost
of music lessons to parents/carers with particular support for FSM pupils. In addition, the music
service provides free instrumental loans for all pupils, free access to county ensembles and additional
groups, free theory lessons. Performance opportunities at venues such as St David’s Hall, Royal
Albert Hall and the Motorpoint Arena are also free for all participants. In recent years, funding has
been available for more able and talented FSM pupils to attend the Royal Welsh College of Music &
Drama.

Xiii. Youth Services

The Youth Service provides open access informal education to approximately 15,000 young people,
a proportion of which will have FSM status. In selected cases, the FSM status of a (Youth) service
user can be identified via the STRIVE vulnerability profiling system which provides the Youth Service
with additional insight into the young person’s needs: This information is then considered by the
youth service before determining which project or team is best placed and most appropriate to take
any intervention forward.

Many of the service’s FSM young people benefit from the personal support and learning relationships
that typify Youth Work-style interventions, as these are open ended (that is, not limited by any time
frame) and designed to meet the needs of the young person in as an inclusive way as possible.

Specialist Youth Service projects, such as the (Families First) Targeted Youth and Family
Engagement project, identify the most vulnerable families for support. These families typically
include FSM learners.

xiv.  Information Data Team (LA)

The LA data team monitor and review the use of FSM as a poverty indicator, facilitating the flow of
information relating to vulnerable groups. The data team manage and incorporate data from other
sources (WG and EAS) into LA reports. The teams work with teams across the LEI to identify and
track vulnerable groups.

7. The Role of parents/carers

Parents are children’s first and most influential educators, throughout the child’s lifetime. There is
substantial evidence to link the home learning environment, including parental attitudes and
behaviours, with their child’s outcomes. Key factors include a language rich environment, an
emphasis on learning and parental engagement as well as how well a parent and child are attuned.
Early Childhood Education and Care research has identified partnership with parents as key to quality
provision and child outcomes. Where education engages parents as equal partners in their child’s
learning, there is greater success for all concerned. Collaborative partnerships are those built on
mutual trust and respect, and an understanding that all involved can bring strengths to achieve the
goals.

Parenting programmes and wider family support have a focus on raising parental aspirations and
developing quality relationships. Creating links between parents, community and education provision
supporting all in lifelong learning raises aspirations in a non-confrontational manner. This in turn

Page 22 of 27
Page 56



supports children to have more holistic development including improved emotional and cognitive
development. There are many examples of good practice through Flying Start, to school family liaison
workers, where best practice is embedded in establishing community relationships.

Role modelling positive expected social behaviours as adults in any contact situation is as equally
important as explaining to children and young people how they should be behaving in any given
context. Relationships take on a more important context when we overlay the impact of Adverse
Childhood Experiences and how the incidents in our past may dictate our behaviour in future
situations. When adults change the conversation opening from one of blame to one of understanding
context, the discussion can be far more fruitful based on trust and respect, and achieve better
outcomes in the longer term.

8. Role of other partners

The Public Service Board (PSB) has strategic responsibility across the Public bodies to develop and
implement the Wellbeing Assessment and Wellbeing Plan for Caerphilly borough. One of the
objectives is Best Start in Life, which includes mitigating the impact of Adverse Childhood
Experiences, developing a cohesive early years integrated system antenatal to 7 years old, and
Children First which is targeted multi agency community focussed work to create resilient
communities to improve outcomes for children and young people.

A second wellbeing objective is multi agency community work targeting regeneration in Lansbury
Park, which links strategically and operationally to the Children First work. The Coalition for Change
Board sits under the PSB with membership at senior manager level and is the strategic driver for
change to target the most disadvantaged communities and pilot different ways of working to create
better outcomes. Children First links to this Board but has a more operational manager membership
to drive operational delivery changes in frontline teams with children and young people at the heart of
the process.

The strategic boards have a significant role to play in supporting change in statutory and discretionary
services and enabling greater collaboration across many different agencies, including police, schools,
health, voluntary sector and early intervention provision.

The early years integrated system pathfinder work stream involves partners at a regional level with
senior managers from Caerphilly Blaenau Gwent, Torfaen, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board
(ABUHB), and Public Health Wales. Although at the start of this work, the initial mapping of the
system has been completed and there is now work to be done at Heads of Service level in
September to identify what the challenges in the current system are, and what the system should look
like for children and families moving through the system. This will require trust and collaboration to
make decisions on future funding and delivery to move to a more cohesive system for families and
make a decisive difference to those in the most disadvantaged circumstances. It will aim to address
some of the current challenges like postcode and complexity and inequity currently in the system
caused by multiple funding streams and guidance or legislation, and will require long term strategic
commitment.

There are many partners wrapped around current provision for FSM pupils including some of those
already mentioned in specific grants administered through Education but partnership goes far beyond
this, for example, Flying Start, Families First, Supporting People, regeneration teams, employability
programmes, housing teams, Gwent police, ABUHB, Public Health Wales, and voluntary sector
organisations like GAVO, Barnardo’s, Action for Children, Pobl, Right from the Start, Llamau, Citizens
Advice Bureau, Parent Network, and all the childcare settings, to name but a few. The partnership
work is critical to ensuring services are targeted to the right children and young people, at the right
time, in the right place and for the right amount of time to support the changes needed to enable
better outcomes.

Page 23 of 27
Page 57



9. Accountability processes related to the performance of FSM pupils

i. Schools Causing Concern Meetings

A Schools Causing Concern meeting can be requested by the Local Authority when a school is
considered to be a ‘school which causes concern’ or is at risk of ‘becoming a school which causes
concern’. A School Causing Concern meeting will be arranged when a school;

e Is placed in a red or amber category;
Has received a local authority warning notice;

e |s placed in an Estyn statutory category of requiring Significant Improvement or Special
Measures;

¢ Demonstrates evidences that enhanced support and challenge is required linked to grounds
1-6 of the Schools Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 for Schools Causing
Concern.

Meetings may be arranged when a school,

e Is placed in a yellow or green category but its capacity to improve is not secure and / or the
pace of improvement is too slow.

e Isin an Estyn review category.

¢ Is identified as a risk in relation to a review or audit, which has been conducted by the LA or
EAS. This may include for example; Finance, Health & Safety and Safeguarding Audits or
Leadership and ALN Reviews.

¢ Demonstrates evidences that enhanced support and challenge is required linked to grounds
1-6 of the Schools Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.

Purpose of meetings:

e To review and evaluate pace and progress in relation to identified School Development Plan
priorities.

¢ To challenge the Headteacher and Governing Body on the rates of progress in their school.

e Torecommend and monitor actions aimed at accelerating improvement.

To consider the extent to which the school has been successful in achieving required improvement.
This will determine future actions by the LA and EAS.
Increasingly, schools causing concern meetings have been used to ascertain and evaluate the
progress, attainment and attendance of FSM learners. In 2019-20, schools causing concern
meetings will increase the level of scrutiny on the performance of all FSM pupils with particular focus
on:

e Attainment of FSM at end of key stages;

o Progress of FSM through the year;

e Quality of teaching and learning (including interventions);

e Attendance and exclusions relating to FSM learners;

o Effective use of the Pupil Development Grant.

ii.  Local Authority Quality Assurance Meetings

Meetings take place on a monthly basis, where the LA has the opportunity to consider the impact of
the work undertaken by the Education Achievement Service. LA QA sessions evaluates the progress
of individual schools and identifies further work to be undertaken by the EAS on behalf of the Local
Authority. These meetings, therefore, monitor the impact of the ‘Shared Ambitions’ document.

As identified in the ‘Schools Causing Concern’ meetings, the focus on the performance of FSM pupils
will increase from 2019-2020 and will include:

e Attainment of FSM at end of key stages;

Page 24 of 27
Page 58



o Progress of FSM through the year;

e Quality of teaching and learning (including interventions);
e Attendance and exclusions relating to FSM learners;

e Monitoring the impact of the Pupil Development Grant.

These meetings are also an opportunity to share LA based information to support the work of the
EAS; e.g. attendance and exclusions relating to FSM learners.

iii.  Service Improvement Plan

As referenced in section 2, the ‘Service Improvement Plan’ identifies the targets and actions for
improvement across all aspects of the education directorate. In 2019, the ‘Service Improvement
Plan’ included additional focus on the attainment, achievement and experiences of pupils from
vulnerable groups including FSM pupils. To identify the impact of the plan, staff undertake a termly
monitoring and evaluation exercise that considers:

o the extent to which the actions have been completed,

o the impact of the work;

o further activities that need to take place to achieve the targets identified in the plan.

Education Management Meetings are a further opportunity to evaluate and challenge each other with
regards to the work undertaken to achieve the targets in the plan.

iv.  Pupil Development Grant Plan Review meetings

The Local Authority and Educational Achievement Service undertake annual meetings with senior
leaders in schools to consider the impact of Pupil Development Plans and reviews. Schools are
provided with support and advice to ensure that the plans are likely to have high impact on learner
outcomes. Where appropriate, schools are asked to resubmit plans in light of the feedback received.

v.  Pupil Aspiration Board

From September 2019, the Strategic Lead for School Improvement will chair half termly meetings to
implement the FSM strategy. Membership of the Board will consist of:

e Strategic Lead for School Improvement (Chair)

e X1 Early Years Lead

e X2 Secondary Headteachers

e X3 Primary Headteachers

e X1 Lead EWO

e X1 Healthy Schools practitioner

¢ X1 Educational Psychologist

e X1 Advisory Teacher

e X1 EAS Representative

The purpose of the Board will be to implement a culture of change within all schools based on the
available research, encompassing the best practice in teaching and learning. The discussion and
actions from the Board will be shared with key stakeholders throughout the year. It is the expectation
that the outcomes of the Board will impact on all schools across Caerphilly.

vi. Education Scrutiny meetings

The Education Scrutiny committee has a statutory role to ensure that the council carries out its
responsibilities properly and, where necessary, are accountable for their actions.

Scrutiny committees have four main roles:

e Holding the education officers as decision-makers to account;

Page 25 of 27
Page 59



e Undertaking reviews of council services and policies;
e Undertaking reviews to develop council services and policies;
e Considering any other matter that affect the county borough.

Within this process, the impact of the work to improve the attainment, progress and experiences of
FSM pupils permeates across a number of reports. It is the intention that the revised FSM Strategy
will be presented to scrutiny in autumn 2019.

vii.  Estyn

As part of their remit, Estyn will scrutinise the standards and provision for FSM pupils and other
vulnerable learners. Supplementary guidance by Estyn (2017) on reducing the impact of poverty
identifies the following strategies to improve outcomes for pupils:

Adopt a whole-school strategic approach to tackling disadvantage

Make intelligent use of data tracking systems to identify learners’ needs

Target interventions, monitor impact and evaluate effectiveness

Adopt strategies that involve parents and carers in learners’ education

Engage communities in the life of the school and the school in the life of the community
Improve attendance

Recognise the relationship between wellbeing and standards and adapt practice to reflect this
Work in partnership with each other and with other organisations

Employ interventions that are evidentially the most effective

Inspectors will also usually report on the extent to which the school makes good use of the Pupil
Development Grant (PDG). The judgement on how well the school uses this funding should align to
standards and progress of pupils. Inspectors should also evaluate the use of other grants such as the
Early Years Pupil Development Grant and the Pupil Development Grant for Looked After Children
(Estyn, 2017).

10. How will we know the strategy is successful?

The measures that will indicate success are identified in the Service Improvement Plan 2019:

i. Attainment — Key Stage 4

KS4 Standards Target

KS4 — Capped 9 ( 2018 Welsh Government average) 350.1

Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge L2 (similar LAS) 80%

Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge L2 (Welsh average) 76%

Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge L2 +1 (similar LAS) 50%

Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge L2 +1 (Welsh average) 54%

i. Attendance
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Primary (e-FSM) 92.40% 92.60% 92.80%
Secondary (e-FSM) 90.00% 90.20% 90.40%

Page 26 of 27
Page 60



iii. Early Years

Baseline data Target
2018
Number of children registered for Flying Start Programme 2436 at Dec 2018 | 2483
% Attendance Flying Start Childcare 72% Autumn 85%
2018
Number of parents completing Flying Start parenting 61% Autumn 75%
programmes 2018
Number of Flying Start parents enrolled in legacy / Not collected N/A
employment programme prior to Spring
2019
Number of Children attending SHEP project during school Summer 2018 More
Holiday 70 than 80
Number of applications for Child Care Offer 389 Autumn 2018 | N/A
Number of Childcare Offer Placements 668 at December | N/A
2018
Savings to parents through Childcare Offer placements £105,075 at N/A
March 2018
Number of Families First funded Assisted and Supported 201 for 2018 91
Placements

iv. Adult Education

Target

Meet or exceed employability targets (as BIW:

given for the BIW and Inspire programme)

Inspire:

Engagement- 548
Employment- 102
Quialifications- 304
Voluntary placements- 128

Engagement- 293
Quialifications- Education/training- 146
Employment- 55

Page 61

Page 27 of 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Agenda Iltem 8

R
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
5

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
24TH SEPTEMBER 2019

SUBJECT: END OF FOUNDATION PHASE, KEY STAGE 2 AND KEY STAGE 3
TEACHER ASSESSMENT OUTCOMES

REPORT BY: EDWARD PRYCE, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR - POLICY AND
STRATEGY, EDUCATION ACHIEVEMENT SERVICE (EAS)

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To inform members of Welsh Government policy changes regarding the use teacher
assessment performance data at the end of Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key
Stage 3.

1.2 To provide members with an overview of Caerphilly schools’ performance, within the
revised policy framework.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 This report is very different to former Performance reports because different
measures have to be reported and individuals cannot be identifiable. Also, data
cannot be represented at an LA level. Therefore this report will outline the current
arrangements in regard to Teacher Assessment and provide an anonymised
overview of Caerphilly Schools’ performance in relation to the other schools in the
region.

2.2 These changes mean significant changes to the information that can be presented in
relation to Teacher Assessment Performance information, with the specific changes
described within the body of the report.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 That Members note the content of this report.
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 This report is intended to keep members informed of Welsh Government policy
changes regarding the use of teacher assessment performance data.

Page 63



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

THE REPORT

In 2018 amendments were made relating to the use of Teacher Assessment
information in Wales. This was the first legislative change merging from the
publication of Successful Futures. It supports the key objectives of the Welsh
Government document: ‘Our National Mission,” in delivering robust assessment,
evaluation and accountability arrangements to support a self-improving system.

International evidence suggests that for all learners to achieve their full potential,
there should be a coherent assessment and accountability system. The primary
purpose of assessment is to provide information that guides decisions about how
best to progress pupils’ learning.

Aggregated Teacher Assessment outcomes have been used for accountability
purposes for too long, which has led to unintended consequences that can negatively
impact upon raising school standards. The Welsh Government changes are
intended to ensure that there is a more coherent system. The purpose of these
changes is to ensure that the focus is on using teacher assessment as a means to
inform better teaching and learning.

National arrangements will have a renewed emphasis on Assessment for Learning
as an essential and integral feature of learning and teaching; it is a significant move
away from gathering information about young people’s performance on a school-by-
school basis for accountability purposes.

Teacher assessment data and National Reading and Numeracy Test data at a
school, local authority and consortia level will no longer be published. This applies to
the Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 in all maintained primary and
secondary schools.

Arrangements that will remain:

o National Reading and Numeracy Tests and Teacher Assessments for individual
learners, however no national school level benchmark information will be
published

o Headteachers are required to report school performance to parents and adult
learners each school year.

o Governing bodies are required to produce annual reports to parents, school
prospectuses, school development plans, and set performance and absence
targets.

o Schools, governing bodies and local authorities still have access to their own
data (alongside national level data) for self-evaluation purposes.

o The Welsh Government continue to collect individual learner level data to
ensure transparency at a national performance level and to inform policy.

Arrangements that will change:

° No comparative information about teacher assessments and tests, in relation to
other schools within a local authority or ‘family of schools’, will be published.

o The Welsh Government no longer produce or publish School Comparative
Reports and All Wales Core Data Sets for schools and local authorities in
respect of teacher assessment data.

o The My Local School website no longer includes teacher assessment data
below the national level (from 2018).

Page 64



5.8

5.9

5.10

End of key stage teacher assessment
All schools (mainstream and special) have a duty to ensure effective delivery of the:

o Foundation Phase

o National curriculum

o Statutory assessment arrangements of the National Reading and Numeracy
Tests and personalised assessments.

These arrangements are in the following Welsh Government Guidance:

ADDYSG CYMRU
EDUCATION WALES

aulGance

Guidance document no: 244/2018
Date of issue: October 2018
Replaces guidance document no: 232/2018

School-based standardisation and moderation

Schools must ensure that there are robust systems and procedures in place to
support accurate and consistent teacher assessment. These systems and
procedures need to be focused on internal standardisation and moderation. This
should allow teachers, within each subject, to confirm a shared understanding of
national curriculum standards, based on an agreed selection of learners’ work and
supporting teacher commentary that shows the links to the level descriptions.

Key Stages 2 and 3 cluster group moderation (core subjects)

Headteachers must ensure that for English, Welsh or Welsh second language,
mathematics and science cluster group meetings for Key Stages 2 and 3 transition
include robust arrangements for moderation of examples of Year 6 and Year 9
learner profiles selected from within the cluster group’s own schools.

These arrangements should add value to school-based standardisation and
moderation by strengthening teacher assessment. They should also ensure that
good practice within the cluster is identified, shared and built upon, to set an agenda
for improvement that reflects local circumstances and needs.

Page 65



511

5.12

5.13

The Local Authority Role

The Local Authority has delegated their role in monitoring the cluster moderation
processes to the EAS. A sample of cluster moderation meetings are attended on an
annual basis by an EAS Officer, to ensure the consistency and effectiveness of
meeting and the overall quality rigour of the cluster moderation process. A summary
report is provided to each local authority.

Foundation Phase

In the Foundation Phase schools report on the performance of 7 year olds in
language, literacy and communication (English or Welsh language) (LLC),
mathematical development (MD), and personal and social development, wellbeing
and cultural development (PSD).

Expected levels of achievement at the end of foundation phase, key stage 2 and key
stage 3

The ‘average’ pupil is expected to achieve outcome 5 by the end of the foundation
phase (formerly national curriculum level 2), with more able pupils achieving outcome
6 (formerly level 3).

At the end of key stages 2 and 3, the ‘average’ pupil is expected to achieve level 4
and above and level 5 and above respectively and more able pupils are expected to
achieve level 5 and 6 respectively.

In addition to performance at the expected level, it is important also to analyse
performance at the Expected Level + 1 at each stage.

This report contains an anonymised overview of data submitted by schools as part of
the National Data Collection process in June 2019. Data is not included for
combination measures such as the Foundation Phase Indicator (FPI) or Core Subject
Indicator (CSI).

Page 66



Expected Levels

Lovel 8
Level 7
Lovel 6
Level 5
Level 4
Level 3
Level 2
Level 1

KS

KS
Qutcome 6
Outcome 5 Ffp
Qutcome 4
Qutcome 3
Qutcome 2
Qutcome 1

‘Expected’ Levels

3 CSI (Level S and above)

2 CSlI (Level 4 and above)

FPI (Outcome S and above)

Expected Levels +1 (Higher Levels)

Level 7
Level 6
Level 5
Lovel 4
Level 3
Level 2
Level 1

Lovel 8

Qutcome 5
Qutcome 4

Outcome 6

‘Expected’ Levels +1

KS3 Level 6 and above

KS2 Level 5 and above

FP Qutcome 6 and above

Page 67



5.14

5.15

Welsh Government, Estyn and WLGA Letter on Evaluation and Improvement
Arrangements, 16 July 2019

Chairs of Scrutiny, Cabinet Members, Directors of Education, Chief Executive
Officers, Managing Directors of Regional Education Consortia

This joint communication from Welsh Government, the WLGA and Estyn to Chairs of
Scrutiny, Cabinet Members, Directors of Education, Chief Executive Officers,
Managing Directors of Regional Education Consortia, stated that:

“It is counter-productive for schools to be placed under disproportionate pressure on
the basis of individual measures. It is not in the interest of school improvement and
risks undermining the ongoing change in culture that we are working together to
achieve. We expect local authorities and regional consortia to support schools to
make appropriate decisions about their curriculum to avoid narrowing choice for
learners.

Collectively, we have agreed that this is the right approach to take and strongly
advise you to use a broad range of un-aggregated data and information to enable
you to discharge your duties when reporting on school performance. Evaluating the
performance of individual schools rather than generating aggregated data at local
authority level will be more helpful to supporting and challenging individual schools
with their improvement.”

The content of this scrutiny report is therefore intended to be used within the context
of a wider range of information that the local authority will use to evaluate individual
school performance, and therefore support and challenge more appropriately to
secure improvement.

LA Performance Data and Analysis

The charts below provide an overview of performance across all schools in the Local
Authority (anonymised and non-aggregated, compared with schools across the
region.

Each orange dot on a chart represents a single Caerphilly school and each grey dot
represents a non-Caerphilly school, but still within the region. Each chart is
organised so by the FSM % of each school (PLASC 2019), so that the schools
serving our least disadvantaged schools are on the left, and those serving our most
disadvantaged are on the right.

The single line through each chart is the ‘line of best fit’ across the region. If schools
are on or around the line, then they are performing in line with expectation. Schools
that are well above the line are performing well above expectation for that particular

year. Schools that are well below the line, are performing well below expectation.

The Challenge Adviser will have undertaken a thorough data analysis for each of
these schools. This will involve analysis at pupil level, to identify any particular
issues with performance, variance from target or any other factors that may have
affected performance. The Challenge Adviser will have also discussed the school’s
in year pupil tracking data, to see if issues were anticipated by the school in advance.

For 2018-2019, the region is implementing a protocol for reviewing School
Development Plans.

Page 68



+EAS \\ '\

Education Achievement Service
Wales

Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg
i Dde Ddwyrain Cymru

EAS Regional Approach
2019-2020

Review of School Development Plans

uuuuu

The school development plan (SDP) is the school’s strategic plan for improvement. It
sets out the actions a school will take to improve learner outcomes based on whole
school self-evaluation, using a range of performance information. Through a series
of workshops, surgeries and professional panels during the summer and autumn
terms 2019, this regional review and evaluation process will support schools to
ensure that the processes for school improvement planning are effective. It will
support national reform and target setting arrangements.

A joint review and evaluation of school development plans with schools, local
authorities and the EAS will take place during the autumn term 2019.

Page 69



Foundation Phase - Language, Literacy and Communication (LLC) — English
and Cymraeg

Percentage of pupils achieving Outcome 5+
All Schools in South East Wales

@® Caerphilly Schools

100 —(@ - @~ -—|——.————1I-.— e e ————— B -
S¢ Yoo i ' 1
S ® o ®ig LY
§¢~"..’ .._‘ ‘ ! o e
90 ’_._ - —o— .T::-"~~:__: — —.— — —.— ' ; e e b —— — — — e — — — — — —t
! @ o B e - &-c_ .. o ®
. ® @ SReemm e B SR I
0-’80*—————.—'-——-‘——# ————— e e — T = m=rammasa
> ® o®
o) ® °
G o0
h707 ———————————— b e —— e —— — — — e ———— — [ S R
5 L J
Lo
g 60 +————— — —— — — — — —— — — — — ————— T T -
[e) 9
)
S 50 44— — — — — — o o — — — — e e — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — —_————— — -
o
©
0 40 —————— o — — o — — T — T — g e =
Q.
>
9_- 30 +——— — — — e — —— — — o — — — — — ———— — — _—— —— — — - ——— — — -
o
S
820 —————— — o T i T -
c
(O]
(&)
a 10 +— — — — — — o — —— — — o —— — — — e ——— — — e ——— — — -, ——— — — -
o
0
0% 10% 20% 30% L 40% 50% 60%
Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals
Percentage of pupils achieving Outcome 6+
All Schools in South East Wales ® Caerphilly Schools
100 — — — — — — ———— — — —— — — — — ————— T T -
NV +—O——— ——— — — — — e e — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — -
g 80 +——— — — — —— — — — — —— — —— ———— T B -
S °
S 70 +— — — — — — e — ——— — o — —— — — —————— e — — — — — S — —
o [ ]
©
860*— ——— T —— — — — - — — T — T e -
5] \ L
8 AN )
8507_.__~ ———»——.————>— ————— ——— — — — —_,—————— —_—————— -
= \i'\.'.g [} ! J.
-~ 1
@O 40— 5 ——i";c&— S~ tewg o tg ———— - .
a - [ )
5 e B %e° ¢ 00l o°
330 +———— — — —e- — & — — — — — —_::_"—"‘—i-ﬂ---,.—_:__—_i_—l ————— —
© e g ® i. e ! _ e i AT
e ! ® °
= p8 L0 o TeiW,e L A S §
< H ! °
g : :
O - -
) 10 +— — — — — — ————— ——— — ——_————— -+ —_————— -—————— —
o i i
i [ i
0 | ! - —
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Page 70



Foundation Phase - Language, Literacy and Communication (LLC) — English and
Cymraeg — Summary Analysis

Please note this chart includes both English and Welsh Medium schools, as either LLC-
English or LLC-Cymraeg is assessed.

e Overall performance at Outcome 5+ is in-line with the region as a whole.
For Caerphilly schools that are less disadvantaged. (<20% FSM), there are more
schools above expectation.

e Caerphilly has schools that are some of the most disadvantaged in the region (>40%
FSM). Of these, 4 are performing above or in-line with expectation, but 4 below.

e There are two schools in the 20-30% FSM, who have performance less than
expected at <70% attainment and three the 10-20% FSM group where attainment is
more than 10% less than expectation.

e Overall performance at Outcome 6+ is in-line with the region as a whole.

e There are however 3 schools, with a range of disadvantage, where performance is
significantly below expectation.

Page 71



Foundation Phase - Mathematical Development (MD)

Percentage of pupils achieving Outcome 5+

Percentage of Pupils at Outcome 5 or above

Percentage of Pupils at Outcome 6 or above

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

All Schools in South East Wales

® Caerphilly Schools

T @000 —0—5. 00— 00— 10— 0 — —g— > ————— -————— ————— .
A o i 4 ®! i
‘~\~ ® 1
| oS paliag™eg ¢ e e 1 i
R ™ : T $.e9 d
el o T ° N
. ® Y e O Yo L VvV OTTTYWSF 7 Tommmcccaccaa.
—_———— — e T T T 'H_.'____'H'._____'H_ ————— ~
° ®
(]
e ———— — e — ——— — ﬁ ————— (o b e —.— — e ———— — -
°
T T T T T T T T T T -
S — — — — — e — — — — — o — — — — — e —— — — — o —— — — — e — — — — — -
°
f——— — — et e — — — — — e — — — — — o —— — — — o —— — — — e ——— — — -
S — L o —— —— L o —— —— e ———— L o —— —— A ———— -
e —— — — — e o — — — o e — — — e — — — — o — — — e —— — — — -
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%
Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals
Percentage of pupils achieving Outcome 6+
All Schools in South East Wales @ Caerphilly Schools
T — — = = ——— — - - T~ - = T -
e — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — e ——— — — o — — — — — e — — — — — i
————— — T = T T~ = T -
A ———— — e — — e — ——— — o ——— — — - — ——— — —_————— — -
+——- — . T T T T T T -
\\\ .
- :‘s —.——s———.———s————— -0-.:————>— ————— e — ——— — -
o” [ ] f
S 1
- %o o. o0 Q' °
T O —g Ve — — ¢ e — e T T el
~~~~~~~~~~~~ ? .: ° 0 ® o ¢
8 0 W 7 Teet ¥ W
e — — — — — — —g— +0— e e —— —""—‘“4-~—-u=.?__—__—_~:4>—_:_ ———— —
® o o e . ° ° N
! J
T T TeT T T T T .I’ _____ l !_.____ - T T T T I
® o
————— — >————.——>——————-<>— ————— el — e ——— -
- —
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Page 72



Foundation Phase - Mathematical Development (MD) — Summary Analysis

e Overall performance at Outcome 5+ is slightly above the region as a whole.

e For Caerphilly schools that are less disadvantaged. (<20% FSM), there are more
schools above expectation.

e Caerphilly has schools that are some of the most disadvantaged in the region Of the
most disadvantaged schools (>40% FSM) 5 are performing above or in-line with
expectation, but 3 well below.

e Overall performance at Outcome 6+ is in-line with the region as a whole.

o There are however a number of schools, with a range of disadvantage, but
particularly 10-30% FSM where performance is significantly below expectation.

e There is one schools in Caerphilly, where no learners achieved O6+

Page 73



Foundation Phase - Personal and social development, wellbeing and cultural
development (PSD)

Percentage of pupils achieving Outcome 5+

All Schools in South East Wales

® Caerphilly Schools

100 — ‘\_ ..'! L A . Q0- — @0 .. ...——1—.— _———t————— =
o Tgedlogle. ¥ *« o
[} ' * 1 ..‘ -------- ..J.h“' """""
90 +— = — — — ¢/ S99 —— @ —— — —p — ———— -, —— ——— -
i o 9 ° °
[ * Y
b °
o 80 +—————— —— — — — - —— - g=— T — —{——— T B -
3 °
o
Q
E707 —————— e — — — — — e — — — — — e ———— — -0———;———0— ————— -
o
Lo
Do Y g S S A
£ — — — T - -
o
e
S 50 = — — — —— o o — — — — e e — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — —
@)
©
0 40 —————— —— — T —— T -
S
>
o 30 +——— — — — e — —— — — o — — — — — ———— — — _—— —— — — - ——— — — -
u—
o
(0]
% 20 —————— — o T i T -
c
(]
g 10 +— — — — — — o — —— — — o —— — — — e ——— — — e ——— — — -, ——— — — -
o
0
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%
Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals
Percentage of pupils achieving Outcome 6+
All Schools in South East Wales ® Caerphilly Schools
100 — — — — — — ————— — (- ——— ————— T T -
i
1
90 +— .—.——.-E— —————— e e e o el e e —— — — — e — -
1
\‘\‘ i ®
% 80 *——‘\\- _._._.:I__..____ —————— T T T T ————— T —— -
g a8 Tt &° o _i®
. 70 +— — — \—‘—I.—.-————.—.v— ————— ——g —— — e ——— — — d— ————— -
o Tl ) Je
© | Tl ® e
P P L [ 1 [ )
60 —— - — — e st T T — B -
£ o P % e ' °
8 e® ® T P
S 50 f— — — s = — Q9 — — —0— —0— — o —0— —_— e — l";'.--i.g,—_-_—_.— _—— e ———— — —
o { ® ° “; “““ e
T ° 1 °
DA ———— 0 —0 g —C— 2. 0 — e T +———— .
S (] [ ]
> )
9_-307 —————— ,____.__,’ ————— —— e — — -, ————— -—————— —
© ®
S
820 4—————— e — — o — — T 2 e S =
o
) [ )
q_;lO* —————— o — —— — — o —— — — — e ——— — — e —— gy e ——— —— -
o [ J
0
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Page 74



Foundation Phase - Personal and social development, wellbeing and cultural
development (PSD) — Summary Analysis

Overall performance at Outcome 5+ is well above the region as a whole.
e There are more schools than expected where 100% of learners achieve O5+
Of the 8 most disadvantaged schools 3 are below expectation.

e Overall performance at Outcome 6+ is in-line with the region as a whole.

o Performance at Outcome 6+ is significantly more variable, but this variability is in line
with the region as a whole.

o There are however a number of schools, with a range of disadvantage, but
particularly 20-60% FSM where performance is significantly below expectation.

Page 75



Key Stage 2 - Cymraeg
Percentage of pupils achieving level 4+
All Schools in South East Wales

® Caerphilly Schools

100 — — — — — — r _____.l_ —_———— T — — — — B e Sl -
o % 0%°* |
1
90 +— — — — — — ’.—_._____Qf_ ——.——-0— ————— e ————— e —— — — — -
[ J
g 80 N I -t = - T T = =
o
o
S 70 +— — — — — — e — — — — — b —— —— e —— — — — e ————— e —— — — — -
o
<
é 60 ————— — e — — [ e e e e e T e e e e -
Q
-
‘(B‘ 50 4 = — — — — o o — — — — - — — — — e —— — — — e ——— — — e — — — — — —
0
S
& 40 +—————— — T T e e e T T e e e e e e e -
u—
o
% 30 +— — ———— o ———— — f— —_—— e — g ————— ,———— e — e —— —— — -
g
[
20+—————— — T T T -
3]
o
10 +— — — — — — o — —— — — f— ———— e —— — — — e ———— — e — — — — — -
0
0% 10% 20% 30% L 40% 50% 60%
Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals
Percentage of pupils achieving level 5+
All Schools in South East Wales ® Caerphilly Schools
100 — — — & — — ————— e — T — — — — — B e Sl -
i
1
90 +— — — — — — :— ————— - —— —— e —— — — — e ————— e —— — — — -
i
i
280*———-.——5— ————— [ e e e e ol =
1
o 1
Keo) \ !
8707——‘1-—.———:— ————— — S — S S — —
o LR °
o |8, wp°e
© 60 +— — \"\—.—:. e el el T e e e e -
g ‘i . o °
- ~~ i ..
(U50*————.——*'\-‘*v‘;g—.—l——'-—.—.—*h——.-——-“— —————————— i
(%)) @ ¥ TUsa 1 ]
] () BT X
Qo ® o &-— . 1
S 40— ———— $ Pe  _w-eie B o SR S A —— -
o 1 9 0T o ¥ T .l bee
“6 ? ([ ] [ J Q ; e T I ,
%307 —————— p— ———— — — ———:—-0—?————-0—.——?———1 ————— —
= [ ) [ J [ J
B20+—————— — T T T -
o e ° °
o [}
10 +— — — — — — o — —— — — f— ———— e —— — — — e ———— — e — — — — — -
0
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Page 76



Key Stage 2 — Cymraeg — Summary Analysis

Please note that there are significantly fewer Welsh Medium primary schools across the

region. These Welsh medium schools tend to have lower overall numbers of FSM learners.
e Overall performance at Level 4+ is slightly above the region as a whole.

e Overall performance at Level 5+ is slightly below that of the region as a whole.
e There are however 2 schools, where performance is significantly above expectation.

Page 77



Key Stage 2 - English
Percentage of pupils achieving level 4+
All Schools in South East Wales

® Caerphilly Schools

100*—.‘- —0—0- @IIeNe - _.i —————— ?——.————T ————— @¢—— -
~-_~.~. b. @ ® [ 1 .. ° § .. i
90 +— o - e i.;.:':";‘~- F---L_T_;_- _’__-j»:_-_ — —— — .E_ > ___® -
o T P =g ===
( 4 oo o . & e oy
280* —————— [ — '._.'___'H______V_._____'U_ ————— -1
8 ° °
S 70 +— — — — — — e — —— — — o — —— — — e ——— — — e — —— — — e ——— — — -
o °
<
- [ )
g 60 —————— e — — - — — T — T e -
(]
-
E 50 4 = — — — — o o — — — — e e — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — —
0
g
a N ———_————t——_—_—_————_—__—-—_-—_-——_-———————— ]
Y—
o
% 30 +— — ———— o ———— — f— ———— — —————— _,—————— —_———— —— -
g
[
20 +—————— o - T T T -
(0]
o
10 +— — — — — — f— — — — — — — ——— — — ——_————— _,-——_————— -—————— —
0
0% 10% 20% 30% L 40% 50% 60%
Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals
Percentage of pupils achieving level 5+
All Schools in South East Wales @ Caerphilly Schools
100 +— — — - — — ————— ————— ————— T T -
!
1
90 +— — — — — — :— ————— e — —— — — e ———— — e ———— — e — ——— — -
!
i
280*———-.——5— ————— [~ — — T — T i -
o i
Keo) \ !
870——%-—.———3— ————— R S - - —
o (X °
Te} ® : ¢ y
%60*——' \-‘s\—\.—i.‘————qi——————.w— ————— T e -
— S~o o
@50—————.—}- —‘~=‘:!—.—l——.’——.—.—-n———.-——-o— ————— -, ——— — — -
(%)) @ ¥ TUsa 1 ]
= (] T ®
a ® .0 &
S 40— ——— s T I B N —
o ’ ] 1 @O T e © e
“6 ! ([ ] [ J Q [ ] e I ,
%307 —————— p— ———— — »—————:—-o—i————-o—.——i———o— ————— —
= [ ) [ J [ J
20 +—————— o - T T T -
o ® ° °
a [}
10 +— — — — — — f— — — — — — — ——— — — ——_————— _,-——_————— -—————— —
0
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Page 78



Key Stage 2 — English — Summary Analysis

Overall performance at Level 4+ is in-line with the region as a whole.

e For Caerphilly schools that are in the range 20-40% FSM), there are 3 schools where
performance is significantly below expectation.

e Caerphilly has schools that are some of the most disadvantaged in the region (>40%
FSM). Of these, all except 1 are performing above or in-line with expectation.

e Overall performance at Level 5+ is slightly below that of the region as a whole.

There are however 4 schools, with a range of disadvantage, where performance is
significantly below expectation.

Page 79



Key Stage 2 - Mathematics
Percentage of pupils achieving level 4+

Percentage of Pupils at Level 4 or above

Percentage of Pupils at Level 5 or above

All Schools in South East Wales

@ Caerphilly Schools

100 — —.~ -00-0— @0-0- — —_———— e —— — 7 — — — — @¢—— -
“-~ & 1 [ ) 0. [
l'»:-_.,__p @ i 20 © 0% °
90 +— L —. o _ |._._ ;:-..—"'—“‘l'—"-—'%—----‘-,gb_—_ B Qo — A — — — e _ S — —
' ® L J ° o o T
1
80 +— — — — — — '; ————— r—————.—wr—.'——— —w—. ————— T T T T
e
70 +— — — — — — e — —— — — o ———— o —— — — — e — —— — — e ——— — — -
[ J
60 —————— e — — — ____'H_____._'H_ ————— e -
50 4 = — — — — o o — — — — - — — — — e —— — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — —
H-—-——t-—_—-——_-—tr—__—_—_—_-—--tr—-t—- - - - —— ]
30 +— — ———— o ———— — f— —_—— e — g ————— _,—————— —_———— —— -
0 4+—————— ————— = — — — — — T+ T+ ———— -
10 +— — — — — — f— — — — — — — —_———— e ———— — _,-——_————— -—————— —
0
0% 10% 20% 30% L 40% 50% 60%
Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals
Percentage of pupils achieving level 5+
All Schools in South East Wales @ Caerphilly Schools
100 +— — — - — — ———— — — e — T — — — — — T T -
90 +— — — — — — e — — — — - —— —— e —— — — — e ———— — e — ——— — -
[ J
800 +—————— e — — [ e e e e T i -
70——\‘——————>— ————— o ———— e —— — — — e — —— — — e ——— — — -
®
o ° L@ 1
60 +—. — :\—\\—.—i.——.—.———r— T TrT T T T T T T T T e -
Sl @ ®
50 +————— \'\.‘*—-.-. S -—.—-:-“— —.———-"—.—————-"- ————— —
o oW TR o "0 4
. L ;
0 +——— —c— — *—l—.——— R Tty it el
4 :® L e S
® ® o
30 +—— — — — — f— — — — — == — ——— — — — ——_——— — — - ————— -————— —
() ° [ ]
4 ° °
20+—————— —— — — — 7’————.—11—————.—11— ————— +————— -
[ J
10 +— — — — — — f— — — — — — — —_———— e ———— — _,-——_————— -—————— —
0
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Page 80



Key Stage 2 — Mathematics — Summary Analysis

e Overall performance at Level 4+ is in-line with the region as a whole.

o For Caerphilly schools that are in the range 20-40% FSM), there are 4 schools where
performance is significantly below expectation.

e Of the most disadvantaged schools (>40% FSM), all except 1 are performing above
or in-line with expectation.

Overall performance at Level 5+ is slightly below that of the region as a whole.

e There are however 10 schools, with a range of disadvantage, but mainly in the 20-
40% FSM group, where performance is significantly below expectation.

Page 81



Key Stage 2 - Science

Percentage of pupils achieving level 4+
All Schools in South East Wales

@ Caerphilly Schools

100 0 -0 gPIgi® o ¢ r—————&————— -
by % S %felpe’ e i
o [ oo " @ e 1 1 [
0 o7 — —o — 8- 0% — Nala» i i B A St ST e M
() ) ® [ J
280* —————— o ———— ‘————.—wr—.'——— —w—. ————— T — -
2 °
o
870— —————— e — —— — — o — —— — — e ——— — — e — —— — — —0—————.——<
o °
<
- [ )
g 60 —————— e — — - — — T — T e -
(]
-
E 50 4 = — — — — o o — — — — e e — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — —
0
g
a N ———_————t——_—_—_————_—__—-—_-—_-——_-———————— ]
Y—
o
% 30 +— — ———— o ———— — f— ———— — —————— _,—————— —_———— —— -
g
[
g 0 —————— o - T T T -
(0]
o
10 +— — — — — — f— — — — — — — ——— — — ——_————— _,-——_————— -—————— —
0
0% 10% 20% 30% L 40% 50% 60%
Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals
Percentage of pupils achieving level 5+
All Schools in South East Wales ® Caerphilly Schools
100 +— — — - — — ————— ————— ————— T T -
90 +— — — — — — e — — — — e — —— — — e ———— — e ———— — e — ——— — -
g o0 +—— 00— — — — — [~ — — T — T i -
o
Q \
870——3“————- b e o o o e o o S - - —
o °
Lo ..\\\.. °
260*——'\\_\.‘%——"——!— ————— - T~ a .
| g @ ® o
4= [ { ]
© 50 — — — - — —..— r—“—_..— o— 0+ —— — — — A= — e —— e — — —
0 00 o0 - ®t-4
= o 80 ® & Orteee i - S ®
o . —_ — —_ — T e ]
3 40 = >4 RS == — - o
Y— ® ) : ® | ITTTTeereeeeea L
© ° ° i e °
QO 30 f— = = — —— o — — —— — o — — —— — -:—2————-0— ————— -, ————— i
g ° o P °
= ( [ J ® [ J
820* —————— — '———r—————.—w——————w— ————— 11-————.——\
(0]
o
10 +— — — — — — f— — — — — — — ——— — — ——_————— _,-——_————— -—————— —
0
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Page 82



Key Stage 2 — Science — Summary Analysis

e Overall performance at Level 4+ is in-line with the region as a whole.

o For Caerphilly schools that are in the range 20-40% FSM), there are 6 schools where
performance is significantly below expectation.

¢ Of the most disadvantaged schools (>40% FSM), all except one are performing
above or in-line with expectation.

Overall performance at Level 5+ is below that of the region as a whole.

e There are a range of schools mainly within the 20-40% FSM group, where
performance is significantly below expectation, but this is more in line with the
regional position than performance in mathematics.

Page 83



Key Stage 3 - English
Percentage of pupils achieving level 5+
All Schools in South East Wales

Percentage of Pupils at Level 5 or above

Percentage of Pupils at Level 6 or above

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

@ Caerphilly Schools

’_____‘~~_~:__.'_._1V_ _____ T~ T T -
e — — — — — — —.—5\:.—“~.-. —_— e —— e — — — — — e —— — — — e — — — — — i
) "‘~~’._.-~..
""""" L S
B = = = — = _._ - v T T =
e — — — — — e — — — — — e — —— — — e ——— — — e — — — — — e — — — — — —
T T T B B T I
e — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — i
T — - T~ T T =
S — — — — — e — — — — — o — — — — — ———— — — e ——— — — e — — — — — -
T T T T T T B T T I
S — — — — — o — — — — — o — — — — — e —— — — — e —— — — — e — — — — — -
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%
Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals
Percentage of pupils achieving level 6+

__ ______ _©All Schools in South East Wales __ __@cCaerphilly Schools

I I ™ T -
— — — —\\— — e — — — — — e — — — — — e ——— — — e —— — — — e — — — — — i

\\
\\
\\

T T T 7 _ﬁ . T  — T~ T T~ -

P\\
e —— — — — = e e —— — — — — e —— — —— e —— — —— e — — -

‘\'_ °
° . @
T . _‘;‘\_ V__.____'H_ _____ B T I
. \L .
S — — — — — e — — — — — p— ‘—‘-\‘— —— e — — — — — e — — — — — e —— — — — -
\“*r

t=————— - ————— -— e — — = - —— - ——— — +———— %
f——— — — et e — — — — — e e — — o —— — — — e ——— — — e ——— — — -
T T T T T T 'H'. _____ T T I
S — — — — — o — — — — — o — — — — — e —— — — — e —— — — — e — — — — — -
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Page 84



Key Stage 3 — English — Summary Analysis

e Overall performance at Level 5+ is in-line with the region as a whole.
Overall, there is less variation than for schools across the region as a whole.
e There are only 3 schools where performance is below expectation.

e Overall performance at Level 6+ is more variable, but approximately in line with that
of the region as a whole.

e There is one school (the most disadvantaged in Caerphilly) , where performance is
significantly below expectation.

Page 85



Key Stage 3 - Mathematics
Percentage of pupils achieving level 5+
All Schools in South East Wales

Percentage of Pupils at Level 5 or above

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

100

Percentage of Pupils at Level 6 or above

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

@ Caerphilly Schools

B ~~_V___;__1V_ - T T T -
~q ,~~~!~~ [ ° ®
o — — — — — e e —‘:‘Nb‘ s<iT —— e — e — e e — — — — — i
Ry bt -
B = = = !'. _____ T T T =
e — — — — — e — — — — — — — — — — i — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — —
T T I e B T I
e — — — — — e — — — — — — — — — — i — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — i
T — I e T T =
S — — — — — e — — — — — p— —— i — i — — — — — e ——— — — e — — — — — -
T T T I Y T T I
S — — — — — o — — — — — p— —— — — o — — — — — e —— — — — e — — — — — -
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%
Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals
Percentage of pupils achieving level 6+
All Schools in South East Wales @ Caerphilly Schools
T - - I - T T T =
e e e — —— — — — — — i — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — —
\
\‘\
T = \_\"\ — I - T T T =
o0
\\\\ .
f— — — — — — »——-:\———>— — — — — i — — — — — e — — — — — e — — — — — —
. 2 °
T — — = ___\~VE“~~ _.___'U_ _____ T T =
[} e
f— — — — — — »————-.-—s-. ———:14‘—.~~‘1 — — — i — — — — — e — — — — — —
|

T — - e I T -
— — — — — — e — — — — — b —— i — i — — — — — e ——— — — —_—— — — — — -
T T I Y T T ~
— — — — — — o — — — — — — —— — — o — — — — — e — — — — — e —— — — — -
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Page 86



Key Stage 3 — Mathematics — Summary Analysis

e Overall performance at Level 5+ is in line with the region as a whole.
o There are only 2 schools where performance is below expectation.

e Overall performance at Level 6+ is more variable, but approximately in line with that
of the region as a whole.

o There are 3 schools (in the 15-25% FSM range), where performance is below
expectation.

Page 87



Key Stage 3 - Science
Percentage of pupils achieving level 5+
All Schools in South East Wales

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

Percentage of Pupils at Level 5 or above

10

@ Caerphilly Schools

T T T TS _.'_._1V______'U______'H_______U_______\
-~
) ®
- __9
e
7——————>—————'—>——— e P — — — e — e —_——— ]
[
B el el Sy i Sl iy Sl
A — o e o e o o — i — i — e — — — — — ]
5
A —— o e o e o e o o — — — — ]
T hr T T T T T T T T T T T
e —— e e — o o —  — e e — e — — — o — e —— — — — ]
Ty T T T T T T T T T T T
A —— o e e o e — e — e — — — — — e ———— — ]
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Percentage of pupils achieving level 6+

All Schools in South East Wales

@ Caerphilly Schools

100 ————— — ————— ————— ————— T — T — -
Iy
\\
\\
90 +— — — — - 3\\—>— ————— T — T — e — — — e R — -
\\\
‘v\\ [ J

280* —————— e ———— T — — e e — -
o N,
o] '\\
S?O’ —————— »———\\—.—s— —————— R — e — — — e e — — — e —
5] SC
© ‘\* P
o) S S e e
5 60 — ® — r\\. T e e -
- 4 Sl
E 50 +— — — — — — f— ———— — i —.—~>~..:N ————— -, ————— —_—————— —
© -
= PY °
Sa0 - ————— - ————— - ———— 2 - ¥ - e -
y—
o
%30 A —— — — — e — —— — — o — — —— — ———— — — _,— ——— — — —— — —— — — -
©
=
c
20 +—————— — — T B T -
(O]
o

10 +— — — — — — o — —— — — o — ——— — e ——— — — -, ——— — — e ——— — — -

0
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals

Page

88



Key Stage 3 — Science — Summary Analysis
Overall performance at Level 5+ is in line with the region as a whole.
e Overall, there is less variation than for schools across the region as a whole.
There are 3 schools where performance is below expectation.

e Overall performance at Level 6+ is more variable, and approximately slightly below
that of the region as a whole.

Page 89



Further analysis of each school’s performance will be undertaken, with school leaders,
as part of whole school self-evaluation to inform future improvement planning
This information will be used within the context of a wide range of self-evaluation

information.
Summary of Key Issues

¢ Foundation Phase - Outcome 5 is lower than expectation for, in each area of
learning, for many schools with higher FSM.

o Key Stage 2 — Level 5+ performance is lower than expectation in each subject for
many schools across the FSM range.

o Key Stage 3 — Level 6+ performance in English at Level 6+ for schools at the higher

end of FSM range.

Page 90



The Performance on Free School Meal (FSM) Learners

The following charts are included for information only. They show FSM / nhon-FSM
outcomes for each school, for the current year. The numbers on each bar represent
the number of pupils that attained / cohort. Where there is no bar present, the cohort
is 0. This is usually for FSM learners, particularly, for schools with a lower % of
FSM.

FSM / non-FSM - Foundation Phase — FPI Achievement by School
(1 of 2)

FP FPI Achievement by school - Caerphilly WFSM B nonFsM
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

owest g6
PM%q0m0

o
=
—

=
=
—

0/2

o
=
—

mid
FSM%

Page 91



(2 of 2)

FP FPI Achievement by school - Caerphilly WFSM  ®nonfsM
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

mid
FSM%

highest
FSM%

Page 92



FSM / non-FSM - Key Stage 2 — CSI Achievement by School
(1 of 2)

KS2 CSI Achievement by school - Caerphilly WFSM M nonfsM
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

lowest gopa1
V% 12

mid

FSM%

Page 93



(2 of 2)

KS2 Achievement by school - Caerphilly mFSM  mnonfSM
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

mid

FSM%

highest
FSM%

e
FZA g ——

I T
L
des oo
s
s
e
s
B
B
R
T
e
e
e
e
s
X
e
Wy
e
&%
wEe
0
F
e
e
o
&8
&
h
7
e

Page 94



FSM / non-FSM - Key Stage 3 — CSI Achievement by School

KS3 CSI Achievement by school - Caerphilly “FSM  ®nonFSM
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

lowest
FSM%

highest
FSM%

Page 95



Gender Comparisons

The following charts are included for information only. They show boy / girl
outcomes for each school, for the current year. The numbers on each bar represent:
the number of pupils that attained / number in the cohort.

Gender - Foundation Phase — FPI Achievement by School

(1 of 2)
FP FPI Achievement by school - Caerphilly mBoys  MGirls
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

lowest
FSM%

mid
FSM%

7
wme
s
w9
oo
B
wE
gy
e
s
-
sk

I
e
e
e
s
es
e
.
wee
s
s
I
e
e
s
e
wwo
B
e
0
BB
B0
we

Page 96



(2 of 2)

FP FPI Achievement by school - Caerphilly mBoys MGirls
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

mid
FSM%

highest
FSM%

Page 97



Gender - Key Stage 2 — CSl Achievement by School

(1 of 2)
KS2 CSI Achievement by school - Caerphilly mFSM  ®nonfsM
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

lowest gop1
V% a2

mid

FSM%

Page 98



KS2 Achievement by school - Caerphilly mBoys  WGirls
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

mid

FSM%

highest
FSM%

Page 99



KS2 Achievement by school - Caerphilly mBoys  WGirls
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

mid

FSM%

highest
FSM%

Page 100



Gender - Key Stage 3 — CSl Achievement by School

KS3 CSI Achievement by school - Caerphilly MESM  ® nonFSM
0% 20%% 4088 608 80% 1005
lowest
FshA%%
highest
FSM%

Page 101



7.1

8.1

9.1

ASSUMPTIONS

There are no specific assumptions.

LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES
Corporate Plan 2018-2023.

This section shows how the report content (project, proposal, information or decision)
contributes towards or impacts the Corporate Well-being Objectives, which are:

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all
Objective 2 - Enabling employment

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes
throughout the county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help
improve people’s well-being

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that
increases opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on
the environment

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in
accordance with the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being
The objectives are high level themes and each have several outcomes that sit
underneath them, (36 in total) so it may benefit the author to look at the outcomes
within the plan to understand the cross-cutting nature of the Council’s priorities with
regard to any impact the report may have on the Corporate Plan.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

This report contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy above.
It is consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable
development principle in the Act. Schools work collaboratively with the Local
Authority Education and wider staff team and the Education Achievement Service to
ensure pupils are supported to attain their educational outcomes and therefore offer
long term opportunities for their future careers. They involve parents and pupils in the
educational pathway to support their attainment and also enable access to
preventative services if family needs are identified. This report identifies the impact of
using the five ways of working in schools for pupils across the borough.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There is no specific equalities impact in relation to the content of this report. When
performance information is discussed with schools as part of the monitoring,
challenge, support and intervention programme, all Equalities and Welsh Language
issues are taken into account, where relevant. Similarly, the Local Authority self-
evaluation considers all equalities issues, and data is also gathered on discriminatory
bullying incidents each term as this can impact on attainment figures for pupils who

fall under any of the protected chapgﬁ'étig_soz



10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no financial implications.

11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

11.1  There are no personnel implications within this report.

12. CONSULTATIONS

12.1 The views of all consultees listed have been incorporated in this report.

13. STATUTORY POWER

13.1 Children and Families Measure (Wales) 2010
13.2 Local Government Measure 2009
13.3 Education Act 1996.

Authors:

Consultees:

Edward Pryce, Assistant Director — Policy and Strategy. Education
Achievement Service (EAS)
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer

Christina Harrhy, Interim Chief Executive

Ed Edmunds, Corporate Director, Education and Corporate Services

Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

Dave Street, Corporate Director, Social Services

Councillor Philippa Marsden, Cabinet Member, Education and Achievement
Councillor Teresa Parry, Chair, Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair, Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services

Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)
Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning and Strategy

Sarah Ellis, Lead for Inclusion and ALN

Paul Warren, Strategic Lead for School Improvement

Jane Southcombe, Finance Manager (Education, Lifelong Learning & Schools
Ros Roberts, Performance Manager

Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services

Lisa Lane, Interim Monitoring Officer.

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104



Agenda Item 9

W
CAERPHILLY

CAERFFrFIZs
>

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
24TH SEPTEMBER 2019

SUBJECT: SELF-EVALUATION PROCESS AND ITS IMPACT ON THE EDUCATION

DIRECTORATE’S SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION & CORPORATE SERVICES

11

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform Members of the process of self-evaluation and its impact on the Education
Directorate’s Service Improvement Plan, and to provide a summary of key strengths and
priorities for improvement that are identified as a result of the self-evaluation process.

SUMMARY

The self-evaluation process is an integral part of the overall cycle of service improvement. It is
fundamental in ensuring the directorate secures ongoing improvements that positively
contribute to the objectives in our Caerphilly Local Authority Service Improvement Plan and
corporate plan. Over the last twelve months, strategies have been embedded to ensure that
the process is increasingly robust, leading to an increasingly accurate list of strengths and
priorities for improvement.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are requested to note the contents of this report.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

Self-evaluation provides key evidence for improvement across the Education Directorate.

THE REPORT

A range of data and other information is collected through the self-evaluation process and has
the following purposes:

e providing an evidence base upon which to arrive at judgements about pupil outcomes and
progress, quality of provision and the effectiveness of leadership and management of
Education Services and its future improvement journey;

o reflecting on what has been done to consistently deepen understanding;
recognising and celebrating good practice and where appropriate use this to support
others in line with Caerphilly LA’s vision for education;

Page 105 Page 1 of 9



ensuring that stakeholders understand the context of the organisation and the contribution
that they can make towards further aid improvement;

improving the performance, impact and effectiveness of the directorate services and its
constituent parts, including commissioned services, so that Members and Regulators can
hold officers, the school improvement service, education and youth settings to greater
account;

evaluating value for money across services; and

guality assuring our contribution to overall corporate objectives.

5.2 An effective self-evaluation policy will lead to the following:

strategic and operational plans which are monitored against clear targets and success
criteria;

purposeful activities linked to continuing professional development;

improved provision for education and youth support services; and

accelerated outcomes on the standards and quality of education and wellbeing for all
learners across the Caerphilly region.

5.3 The Caerphilly Education directorate self-evaluation links directly to the Estyn Local
Government Education Services Inspection Framework (LGES) and our wider local authority
priorities. This enables us to have an accurate and up to date picture of our strengths and
areas for development across all areas of our work.

5.4 The three inspection areas of the LGES inspection framework are set out below.

1. Outcomes

2.

1.1 Standards and progress overall
1.2 Standards and progress of specific groups
1.3 Wellbeing and attitudes to learning

Quality of Education Services
2.1 Support for school improvement

2.2 Support for vulnerable learners
2.3 Other education support services

3. Leadership and management

3.1 Quality and effectiveness of leaders and managers
3.2 Self-evaluation and improvement planning

3.3 Professional learning

3.4 Use of resources

5.5 The table below identifies the range of scrutiny reports for the academic year 2018-19 and
identifies their relationship to the different inspection areas.

Indicator | Inspection Scrutiny reports 2018-19
Area

1.1 Standards and | Key Stage 4/Key Stage 5 Performance 2018 (8" January 2019)
progress
overall Pupil Attainment at Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2, Key Stage 3

(Tuesday 25" September 2018)

Summary of Estyn Inspection Outcomes Under the Common
Inspection Framework (CIF — September 2018 — March 2019) (2"
April 2019)

Page 106 Page 2 of 9



1.2 Standards and
progress of
specific groups
1.3 Wellbeing and | Improving School Attendance and Reducing Exclusions (2" July
attitudes to 2019)
learning
2018-19 Annual report on Wellbeing Obijective 1 of the Corporate Plan
(215 May 2019)
How Schools Engage with the Public Health Wales ‘Healthy Schools’
Scheme (2" July 2019)
2.1 Support for Education Achievement Services (EAS) Business Plan 2018-2021 —
school 17th March 2019 — 2021 (2" April 2019)
improvement
National School Categorisation 2018-19 (2" April 2019)
2.2 Support for Anti Poverty Programme (6™ November 2018)
vulnerable
learners Education Other Than At School (EOTAS) — 6" November 2018
Childcare Offer for Wales (8™ January 2019)
2.3 Other Library Services Annual Welsh Government Standards Assessment
education 2017-18 (19" February 2019)
support
services Impact of Caerphilly Music Service (215 May 2019)
3.1 Quality and Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2018 Update (19" February 2019).
effectiveness
of leaders and | Draft Education Attainment Strategy (8" January 2019)
managers
Education Attainment Strategy and Action Plan (2" April 2019)
3.2 Self-evaluation | Self-evaluation process and its impact on the Education Directorate’s
and Service Improvement Plan (6" November 2018)
improvement
planning Junior and Youth Forum Priorities (21 May 2019)
3.3 Professional

learning

Page 3 of 9

Page 107




Indicator | Inspection Scrutiny reports 2017-18
Area
3.4 Resources Medium term financial plan (Education & Lifelong Learning (including

Schools) - saving proposals for 2019/20 (17" December 2018)

All Authority Draft Budget Proposals for 2019/20 (17" December
2018)

Education Capital 2019/20 (19" February 2019)

Proposal - Federation of Schools (6" November 2018)
Budget Monitoring 2018/19 (25™ September 2018)
Budget Monitoring 2018/19 (8" January 2019)

Individual Pupil Funding (6" November 2018)

Cwmecarn High Schools Closure Update (8" January 2019)

Terms of Reference for Review of Post 16/Single Sex and Surplus
Places (7"" March 2019)

Welsh Government Community Hub Grant 2019/20 (215 May 2019)
Welsh Government 21st Century Schools and Education Programme
— 3G Multi Use All Weather Pitch at Blackwood Comprehensive
School. (215 May 2019)

Education and Lifelong Learning Grants 2019-20 (25" June 2019)

Formula Funding Arrangements for Ysgol Cwm Rhymni (2" July
2019)

Federation of Schools — Consultation Response Report (2" July 2019)

21 Century Schools and Education Band B Programme (2" July
2019)

Specialist Resource Base (SRB) Funding Review (2" July 2019)

5.6 Main Themes emerging from self evaluation

5.6.1 Good features across the education directorate include:

i. Standards and provision at end of Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 are good. This is
evidenced by individual pupil level data, Estyn outcomes and school categorisation.

i. Performance at Key Stage 3 continues to improve. This is evidenced by a range of indicators
measuring performance at the end of Key Stage 3 over the three years.

Page 108 Page 4 of 9



Vi.

Vil.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Unverified Key Stage 4 data for 2019 identifies an improvement across some of legacy
indicators and newly implemented interim measures.

Standards of achievement (additional awards, national and local accreditations) through the
Youth Service (16-25) is good. This is evidenced through the development of skills in 5 key
areas essential for personal, social and educational development.

The number of schools categorised as red and amber in primary, infant and junior schools has
decreased over time. An increasing number of schools are being categorised as ‘green’,
therefore requiring less support.

The LA currently has a relatively low number of schools in a statutory category. At present,
there is one secondary school in a statutory category. Where schools have been placed in an
Estyn follow-up category, nearly all primary, infant and junior schools make good progress
within the agreed timeframe and are removed. Recent analysis of data and feedback from the
School Improvement Service indicates that secondary schools in ‘Estyn Review’ are making
progress.

The number of primary schools receiving ‘excellent’ judgements by Estyn increased in 2018-
19.

School engagement with the Healthy Schools scheme has ensured that Caerphilly has
achieved the target of 95% of schools to have reached Phase 3 or above. Caerphilly has
achieved above the 10% target figure of schools to achieve NQA status.

The Local Authority’s strategy for supporting LGBTQ+ students has been recognised by
Stonewall Cymru as best practice.

Flying Start Programmes provide effective intensive bespoke interventions in conjunction with
health visitors and family support workers.

The implementation of the WG Childcare Offer has been effective. Caerphilly LA was an early
implementer and was able to roll out the offer to the full Caerphilly borough within seven
months. Feedback from Welsh Government has been very positive.

Caerphilly has been proactive in stimulating demand for Welsh medium education across the
borough including development of substantial Welsh medium childcare provision, primary
schools and secondary school across 2 sites.

Students entered for Associated Board and Trinity Guildhall examinations via Caerphilly Music
Service have resulted in a 100% pass rate. Caerphilly Music Service is the only remaining
Local Authority in Wales that provides a subsidy for schools to support students from an
economic disadvantaged background.

The Junior Forum, one of a few in Wales, is recognised by WG as an effective and accessible
mechanism for participation. Nearly all students demonstrate an increased understanding of
children’s rights as well as demonstrating a progression in soft skills attainment. All young
people actively involved in the Youth Forum feel that they influence decision making through
the youth forum, and demonstrate progression in personal and social skills.

The Cabinet Member for Education plays a pivotal role in the strategic planning of education
across Caerphilly. The scrutiny committee play an important role in self-evaluation processes
and holding the education directorate to account.

Page 109 Page 5 of 9



XVi.

XVil.

XViii.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

XXil.

5.6.2

Vi.

Vil.

viii.

The Local Authority leadership team act as role models to others across early years settings,
schools, youth services, libraries and specialist provisions by putting learner achievement,
attainment and provision at the heart of decision making.

Processes for the recruitment of Headteachers have proved successful leading to greater
consistency in the delivery of the ‘Shared Ambitions’ strategy across the Local Authority.
Induction programmes provided by peers has been identified as good practice.

Trinity Fields Special School provides effective support to other schools across the Local
Authority via the hub and spoke model.

Peer working alongside other Local Authorities has verified self-evaluation judgements and
helped further improve internal systems and processes.

Analysis of the most recent Children’s Public Library User Surveys highlights the encouraging
levels of customer satisfaction that persist among users under 16 years of age. The Library
Service achieved 18 out of 18 core entitlements against the Welsh Public Library Standards in
2017/18.

CCBC'’s adult education service is an active member of the Gwent Five County Partnership
for Adult Community Learning. Our ACL department has achieved the highest successful

completion & attainment rates [learners who start and complete courses] for the last five
years.

The finance team have successfully worked with Managers and Schools to secure “new”
funding through a bid process with Welsh Government [e.g. School Business Managers Pilot;
Community Focus School Business Managers Pilot; Reducing Infant Class Size Grant; School
Based Supply Cluster Pilot].

Main priorities/actions for improvement:

Improve outcomes at Key Stage 4 with particular focus on standards in English language and
the Capped 9 measure.

Continue to further improve the quality of leadership across all phases of education.
Increase the number of pupils achieving A-A* at Key Stage 5.

Improve the attainment and progress of all learners in receipt of free school meals across all
phases of education.

Undertake a review of foundation phase practice to confirm existing judgements relating to
standards of learning and provision.

Evaluate the impact of implementation of the digital competency framework and consider
additional actions to improve student’s acquisition of digital skills.

Further improve standards of attainment and provision in Welsh medium schools.

Improve quality of self-evaluation processes by developing processes and analysis of student
destination data.

Build on recent increases in attendance data with additional focus on persistent absenteeism
and attendance of free school meal pupils.

Page 110 Page 6 of 9



Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVil.

XViii.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

XXil.

XXili.

XXIiV.

XXV.

XXVi.

6.1

Reduce the number of exclusions across secondary schools in line with regional and national
data.

Continue to reduce the percentage of pupils identified as not in education, employment or
training.

Improve the quality and impact of school development plans, particularly in the secondary
phase.

Work with the school improvement service to ensure that schools in need of support
accelerate at an appropriate pace.

Continue to evaluate the effectiveness of the Youth Service and make refinements where
appropriate.

Refine current procedures to monitor and track ‘risk’ pupils to ensure that all categories of
vulnerability are taken into account. Work alongside school improvement partners to monitor,
challenge and support schools in order to raise attainment for these students.

Continue to develop methods for evaluating the impact education services have on wellbeing
and attitudes to learning. Modify existing strategies based on findings.

Work alongside regional and national partners to further improve the quality of education for
pupils identified as EOTAS (Education other than at school).

Improve identification and outcomes for less able students through the successful
implementation of the Additional Learning Needs Reform Act.

Reduce the number of secondary schools requiring the highest levels of support (amber and
red).

Reduce the number of secondary schools identified as ‘Estyn Review’ following statutory
inspection.

Effectively implement the ‘Successful Futures’ curriculum in order to improve the quality of
teaching and learning and the quality of provision.

Continue to sharpen and improve self-evaluation processes through an ethos of ‘collective
accountability’.

Monitor and evaluate the impact of the 215t Century Schools programme to ensure that the
strategy raises pupil attainment and enhances current provision.

Continue to promote regional partnerships to ensure consistency and promote best practice.
Continue to utilise stakeholder feedback as a tool for self-evaluation.

Improve financial analysis to enhance how the Directorate considers value for money, thus
ensuring that managers are more fully informed when considering the allocation of reducing
resources.

ASSUMPTIONS

No related assumptions have been felt to be necessary in relation to this report.

Page 111 Page 7 of 9



7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES

The Caerphilly Council corporate plan includes the objective to improve the educational
outcomes of all learners across Caerphilly.

The Shared Ambitions strategy identifies the Local Authority’s commitment to improving
attainment for all pupils, as well as outlining how this will be achieved in partnership with the
Education Achievement Service and schools.

The Service Improvement Plan is an annual document that coordinates the strategic direction
of all services across the education directorate through a series of action plans. The Service
Improvement Plan contains a number of overarching targets:

1. Standards - Improve outcomes for all learners particularly those within Key Stage 3 and
4,

2. Attendance - Increase the percentage of pupil attendance across primary and secondary
schools in order to maximise pupils’ learning;

3. Early Years/Youth/Adult Learning - Reduce the impact of poverty upon communities;

4. 21st Century Schools - Transform educational opportunities for learners by delivery of fit
for purpose;

5. Inclusion - Improve provision and outcomes for vulnerable groups;

6. Inclusion - Reduce the rates of exclusions, therefore impacting upon pupil attainment and
outcomes;

7. Inclusion - Secure excellence in learner well-being;

8. Inclusion - Ensure that the LA is fully compliant with the ALN Act.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

The Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 makes
reference to the following:

A healthier Wales, supporting vulnerable learners can improve their well-being and
educational achievement;

A more equal Wales, a society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their
background is;

A Wales of cohesive communities, improving quality of life with attractive, viable, safe and well
connected communities.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There is no specific equalities impact in relation to the content of this report. The Local
Authority self-evaluation process considers all equalities issues through the identification of
vulnerable groups related to their achievement and attainment. This identification of groups
contributes to priorities identified in the Service Improvement Plan.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications with respect to this report.

Page 112 Page 8 of 9



11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

11.1 There are no personal implications with respect to this report.

12. CONSULTATIONS

12.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been reflected in this report.

13. STATUTORY POWER

13.1 Local Government Act 1972.

Author: Paul Warren, Strategic Lead for School Improvement
E-mail: warrepl@-caerphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Interim Chief Executive

Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services

Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director, Education and Corporate Services
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer

Sue Richards, Head of Service — Education Planning & Strategy

Sarah Ellis, Lead for Inclusion & ALN

Sarah Mutch, Early Years Manager

Jane Southcombe, Finance Manager

Councillor Teresa Parry, Chair Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Philippa Marsden, Cabinet Member for Education and Achievement
Debbie Harteveld, Education Achievement Service

Kirsty Bevan, Education Achievement Service

Julie Wood, Education Achievement Service

Ros Roberts, Performance Management

Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities & Welsh Language)

Rob Tranter, Legal Services

Steve Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services

Page 113 Page 9 of 9


mailto:warrep1@caerphilly.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 114



Agenda Item 10

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
24TH SEPTEMBER 2019

SUBJECT: SAFEGUARDING

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND

CORPORATE SERVICES

11

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to update Members regarding safeguarding
developments in 2018/2019.

SUMMARY

Safeguarding children and young people is a key statutory duty of the Council and is
embodied in the Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014.

The Local Authority (LA) has clear policies and procedures linked to safeguarding
children in education services. Safeguarding underpins priorities within the
Directorate Plan (2018 — 2023) and all related plans.

The LA works in partnership with Children’s Services, education providers, parents,
The South East Wales Consortium (SEWC), the Education Achievement Service
(EAS) and other partners to ensure that there is a robust approach towards
safeguarding arrangements.

The LA has a pivotal role in safeguarding activities at a national, regional and local
level for example the National Safeguarding in Education Group (SEG), and the
regional South East Wales Consortium (SEWC) SEG. This ensures that policy and
practice are well informed.

The LA Safeguarding Policy for schools directly reflects ‘Keeping Learners Safe’
Circular 158/2015.

The LA has a clear system of self evaluation in relation to safeguarding (linked to
ESTYN guidance and broader self evaluation processes). This informs developments
in processes and practice.

Page 115



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1

52

5.3

54

The LA provides robust advice and support and there are effective processes in
place in relation to school audits, the monitoring of child protection referrals and
professional concerns.

The LA has a revised model of training for schools and is reviewing practitioner
forums.

There are robust monitoring arrangements in place with regard to the scrutiny of
physical intervention forms. This ensures that the LA exercises its duty of care in
relation to pupils and staff members.

There are robust systems in place regarding the recording and monitoring of
discriminatory incidents. Guidance is updated to reflect any new categories as they
are defined. The LA has been recognised by Stonewall as developing good practice
in this area.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that an annual report is presented to Scrutiny Committee.

Members are requested to note the contents of the report.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

Safeguarding is a priority and it is important that Members are apprised of relevant
work undertaken in this area.

THE REPORT

Safeguarding children and young people is a key statutory duty of the Council and is
embodied in the Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014.

The LA has a clear Corporate Policy for Safeguarding outlining the clear intention of
the council in relation to safeguarding. As part of the Counci’s commitment to
safeguarding, we work proactively with our partners under the auspices of the South
East Wales Safeguarding Children Board (SEWSCB) and the Gwent Wide Adult
Safeguarding Board (GWASB) to ensure that statutory guidance is followed,
awareness and good practice is promoted and the workforce practices safely and
effectively.

Each of the LAs across South East Wales Consortia (SEWC) is represented at the
National Safeguarding Education Group (SEG). Engagement in this group facilitates
regional and local developments. The SEWC SEG meets to promote consistency,
share good practice and contribute to national consultations.

The LA has a clear definition of safeguarding and clearly defined responsibilities as
outlined in the Corporate Policy including areas such as Violence Against Women,
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDA&SYV) and Counter-terrorism and risk
of radicalisation (Prevent)

Page 116



55

5.6

5.7

5.8

59

5.10

511

5.12

Safeguarding is a priority in the Education and Corporate Services Directorate with
safeguarding central to priorities in the Education Plan for 2018 — 2023.

The management of Education Safeguarding and LAC team has returned to the
Education Directorate as of May 2019. There is a clear plan for the service
development which is reviewed annually in line with the broader Service
Improvement Plan. This includes a review of roles and responsibilities linked to the
Additional Leaning Needs and Tribunal Act 2018 and the associated changes to the
Social Services and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014 Part 4. The role of the centrally
employed education safeguarding officer will continue to ensure support to schools in
relation to safeguarding and provide challenge where necessary.

There is excellent partnership working across Education and Children’s Services to
ensure that there is a robust approach towards safeguarding arrangements.

The LA makes an effective contribution to the regional Gwent Safeguarding Board,
and the Case Review Subgroup and Policies and Procedures Subgroup, as well as
Corporate Safeguarding Board and the DSO practice development group.
Education contributes to:

= actions plans developed to formulate the work of these groups for
example review of policy and practice

collective oversight of arrangements for training (VAWDASYV),

audits

progress reports

self evaluation

Designated managers (Lead for Inclusion and ALN and Service Manager) work
closely together to ensure that there is consistency across the services in terms of
advice, support, training and challenge. The managers also fulfil an auditing role
ensuring an additional layer of evaluation and challenge where necessary, e.g.
sampling school audits, monitoring child protection referrals and professional
concerns.

The LA has a clear Safeguarding Policy for schools, adopted by all schools in the
Borough. This directly reflects ‘Keeping Learners Safe’ Circular 158/2015. The
existing policy is currently under review and following consultation with nominated
Primary and Secondary Head teachers will be circulated at the beginning of the
Autumn term (2019) for all schools to adopt. This will be followed up in the LA audit
of schools.

The LA has a robust process of self evaluation and specifically follows the Estyn
framework for self evaluation of safeguarding within education. There is also a
recently developed Corporate safeguarding assessment tool and associated action
plan. The LA’s contribution to this reflects the areas for development identified
within the education self evaluation.

Within the broad remit of safeguarding there are several key areas of focus such as
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDA&SYV) and
Counter-terrorism and risk of radicalisation (Prevent). Education is represented at
strategic groups to ensure that senior managers are well informed of the LA’s
responsibilities and that information is cascaded to all staff. The safeguarding policy
for schools also reflects this key information.

Page 117



5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

517

5.18

5.19

Estyn have recently undertaken a thematic review in relation to Prevent and have
visited the LA and schools in order to gather information to contribute to this review.
Initial feedback indicates that information gathered may be used to support a case
study.

Working with the Police the LA has engaged with Operation Encompass since 2019
and has a robust process of ensuring that schools receive daily information regarding
incidents of domestic abuse. Initial feedback indicates that this is welcomed by
schools. The LA contributes to the regional group to review current practice and
identify areas for future development. The performance data available to the LA will
be used to inform local developments.

High quality child protection training is delivered to all Learning education and
Inclusions staff, teaching and non-teaching staff, governors and other partners. The
LA has recognised the need to review the method of delivery to ensure that there is a
sustainable model in place that will enhance the capacity for schools to effectively
manage safeguarding issues. Working with partners in Social Services training
materials have been revised and a train the trainer model for schools and education
setting will be implemented from the Autumn term 2019. All schools are up to date
with their safeguarding training.

The LA provides effective advice regarding individual needs via the Information,
Assistance and Advice Team (IAA), Child Protection Coordinator, Lead for
Safeguarding in Education and HR (where appropriate). Key managers in Education
and Social Services regularly review decisions in order to ensure the appropriateness
of decision making. Scrutiny of Estyn school inspection reports indicates that there
are appropriate safeguarding policies and procedures in place in schools in
Caerphilly.

Allegations against professionals are manged robustly with engagement from
education, social services and HR. Processes and decision making are reviewed on
a regular basis.

The LA has a good system of audit for schools and maintained child care settings to

examine their responses to safeguarding responsibilities. Additional checks are built

into this process to ensure that the audits themselves are robust. Any actions arising
form the audits are undertaken and checked by managers. 5% of schools across the
LA were rated other than green and required follow up. All schools are now rated as
green.

There is a robust system for recording and monitoring a range of discriminatory
incidents requiring schools to submit returns to the LA on a termly basis which are
scrutinised by LA officers. This is updated with any additional characteristics linked to
discrimination as required. In Autumn 2018 8% of schools or providers indicated one
or more incident. These related to homophobic, race, nationality and cultural issues.
Restorative approaches were adopted as a result. In the Spring term 2019 23% of
schools or providers indicated one or more incident. In addition to the issues
identified in the autumn term nationality and religion were also identified. Restorative
approaches, sanctions and awareness raising activities were undertaken.

Page 118



5.20

8.

8.1

There is a robust system for recording and monitoring physical interventions. During
2018 /19 the LA received 512 restrictive physical intervention forms. This is
compared to 417 in 2017 /18.

Of these:

384 were primary (75%)

14 were secondary (2.73%)

66 were EOTAS (12.89%)

34 were SRB’s (6.65%)

14 were special school (2.73%)

There were no Physical Intervention that resulted in safeguarding concerns regarding
a member of school staff during the academic year. 8% of these were followed up
with schools.

ASSUMPTIONS
In considering the recommendations the following assumptions have been made:

Safeguarding children and young people is a key statutory duty of the Council and as
such must be reported to scrutiny to ensure that members are kept informed.

LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES

e Caerphilly County Borough Council Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults
Corporate Policy.

e Corporate Plan 2018 — 2023

e Service Improvement Plans

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

The Corporate Safeguarding Policy contributes to the Wellbeing Goals as follows and
implementing the Council’s responsibility for safeguarding children (and vulnerable
adults) is consistent with the five ways of working as set out in the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

e A prosperous Wales: The Corporate Policy confirms that Caerphilly County
Borough Council is committed to ensuring that everyone living within the Borough
is safe and protected and that our statutory responsibilities to safeguard and
protect children, young people and vulnerable adults are effectively met.

e A resilient Wales: Safeguarding means protecting individual’s health, well being
and human rights and enabling them to live free from harm, abuse and neglect
(Care Quality Commission, 2014). This process will contribute to developing
resilience.

* A healthier Wales —A more equal Wales: The Safeguarding Policies promote
the importance of the well being and safety of children and adults.

* A Wales of cohesive communities: The Safeguarding Policies promote well
being and preventative approaches which links to the development of safe
communities.

* A globally responsible Wales: The aim of the Safeguarding Policies is to ensure
that there is a focus on well being and that good practice is embedded in schools
and other service providers

Page 119



9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

9.1 This report requires no specific equalities impact assessment.

10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The safeguarding manger post and the LAC support workers have moved from
Social Services to the Education Directorate along with the budget. The manager
post has been reconfigured as outlined in section 11.

11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The safeguarding manager post has been reconfigured to ensure that both
safeguarding and LAC responsibilities (in line with the ALN Act 2018 and the social
services and wellbeing Act) are appropriate addressed creating a Safeguarding
coordinator and a LAC coordinator post.

12. CONSULTATIONS

12.1 The report reflects the views of the consultees based on consultations undertaken
to date.

13. STATUTORY POWER

13.1 Social Services and Wellbeing Act
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
Education (Wales) Act 2014
Education Act 1996 - Equality Act 2010
Additional Learning Needs and Tribunal Act (2018)

Author:Sarah Ellis, Lead for Inclusion and ALN (elliss@caerphilly.gov.uk)
Consultees:

Christina Harrhy, Interim Chief Executive

Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services

Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services,
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer

Councillor Philippa Marsden, Cabinet Member, Education and Achievement
Councillor Teresa Parry, Chair Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
Jane Southcombe, Finance Manager -Education, Lifelong Learning & Schools
Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning and Strategy

Paul Warren, Strategic Lead for School Improvement

Sarah Mutch, Early Years Manager

Lisa Downey, Personnel Manager

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services

Steve Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement and Acting Section 151 Officer
Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)

Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Service and Monitoring Officer

Ros Roberts, Performance Manager

Nicola Barrett, Service Manager

Page 120


mailto:elliss@caerphilly.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Education Scrutiny Committee held on the 2nd July 2019.
	5 Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.
	App1 2019-20 Education FWP
	App1 2019-20 Education FWP Information Items
	App 2 Cabinet Forward Work Programme.
	Appendix 3 - FWP - Prioritisation

	7 Free School Meals (FSM) Strategy.
	8 End of Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 Teacher Assessment Outcomes.
	9 Self-evaluation process and its impact on the Education Directorate's Service Improvement Plan.
	10 Safeguarding.

